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NYS Unified Court System
Office of Court Administration
Attorney Registration Unit

Location of Registered NY Attorneys as of the end of Calendar Year 2018

Attorneys by County of Business
(If no business address, county of residence)

County Total County Total County Total

Albany 4,939 Herkimer 73] Richmond 1,538
Allegany 54]| Jefferson 157)| Rockland 1,608
Bronx 3,201]| Kings 10,266} St. Lawrence 147
Broome 607' Lewis 27|| Saratoga 816
Cattaraugus 136" Livingston 108{] Schenectady 602
Cayuga 142}l Madison 129}] Schoharie 55
Chautauqua 263]| Monroe 3,657|| Schuyler 35
Chemung 170{] Montgomery 81}] Seneca 39
Chenango 73}| Nassau 14,866]| Steuben 200
Clinton 149}] New York 95,005}] Suffolk 8,265
Columbia 262}1 Niagara 398]} Sullivan 225
Cortland 87}| Oneida 614|| Tioga 52
Delaware 92{l Onondaga 2,562" Tompkins 455
Dutchess 1,12‘f|| Ontario 286}] Ulster 613
Erie 5,669|l Orange 1,136]] Warren 274
Essex 102}} Orleans 31“ Washington 85
Franklin 96h Oswego 135II Wayne 119
Fulton 76]| Otsego 154)] Westchester 11,709
Genesee 114}] Putnam 406{] Wyoming 52
Greene 131]1 Queens 7,176} Yates 37

Hamilton 22}] Rensselaer 591 , .
Sub-Total within NYS 182,296

County . Total County Total
Out of USA 29.450}]] Out-of-State 114.138 :Sinb-Total outsidé NYS | 143.588
Grand Total 325,884
Attorneys within NYS by Judicial Department of Business
(If no business address, county of residence)
Department Total Department Total Department Total Department Total
Ist 98,206 2nd 58,097 3rd 11,120 4th 14,873

Total by Department 182,296



Attorney Discipline - 1st Department

Chief Atty Grievence Comm 1st 162,239 ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney 159,738 - ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney 159,738 ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney 159,738 ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney 152,665 ATT
Principal Attorney 150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney 150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney 150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney 145,364 ATT
Principal Attorney 145,364 ATT
Principal Attorney 145,364 ATT
Principal Attorney 145,364 ATT
Special Projects Counsel 145,277 ATT
Principal Attorney 131,138 ATT
Principal Attorney 126,396 ATT
Principal Attorney 126,396 ATT
Principal Attorney 121,654 ATT
Principal Attorney 116,912 ATT
Associate LAN Administrator 115,816 ADM
Principal Court Analyst 97,730 ADM
Senior Court Analyst 94,857 ADM
Senior Court Analyst 91,613 ADM
Senijor Court Analyst 88,367 ADM
Senior Court Analyst 83,796 ADM
Court Analyst 81,685 ADM
Court Analyst 75,988 ADM
Court Analyst 75,988 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst 73,404 ADM
Court Analyst 72,454 ADM
Administrative Secretary 72,000 ADM
Court Analyst 64,592 ADM
Secretary 63,730 ADM
Law Stenographer 61,362 ADM
Court Analyst 58,894 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst 57,876 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst 52,700 ADM
Law Stenographer 44,878 ADM
Secretary 44,786 ADM
Total FTE - 38
Personal Service $4,066,181
Non-Personal Service $262,690

Total $4,328,871



Attorney Discipline - 2nd Department

y $164,149
Chief Attorney $164,149 ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney $162,446 ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney $162,446 ATT
Chief Attorney $160,650 ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney $159,739 ATT
Principal Attorney $154,849 ATT
Principal Attorney $154,849 ATT
Principal Attorney $154,849 ATT
Principal Attorney $154,849 ATT
Principal Attorney $154,849 ATT
Principal Attorney $150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney $150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney $150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney $150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney $150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney $150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney $145,364 ATT
Principal Attorney $145,364 ATT
Principal Attorney $145,364 ATT
Principal Attorney $145,364 ATT
Principal Attorney $145,364 ATT
Principal Attorney $139,641 ATT
Principal Attorney $126,396 ATT
Principal Attorney $112,170 ATT
Principal Court Analyst $104,792 ADM
Senior LAN Administrator $104,792 ADM
Principal Court Analyst $104,792 ADM
Asst Appellate Court Attorney $101,261 ATT
Associate Attorney $95,606 ATT
Associate Attorney $95,606 ATT
Senior Court Analyst $91,613 ADM
Senior Attorney $89,790 ATT
Senior Court Analyst $88,367 ADM
Senior Court Analyst $88,367 ADM
Senior Attorney $85,806 ATT
Senior Attorney $85,806 ATT
Court Analyst $81,685 ADM
Court Analyst $78,836 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $70,816 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $70,816 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $70,816 ADM
Court Analyst $69,316 ADM
Secretary $66,096 ADM
Secretary $63,730 ADM
Secretary $61,362 ADM
Secretary $61,362 ADM
Secretary $61,362 " ADM
Secretary $61,362 ADM
Secretary . $61,362 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $60,464 ADM
Secretary $47,154 ADM
Snr Appellate Office Assistant $46,951 ADM
Snr Appellate Office Assistant 546,449 ADM

Total FTE - 54
Personal Service $5,970,024
Non-Personal Service $833,649

Total $6,803,673



Attorney Discipline - 3rd Department

Chf Atty Grievence Commission $158,531 ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney $154,996 ATT
Principal Attorney $150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney $134,987 ATT
Principal Attorney $121,703 ATT
Associate Attorney $110,857 ATT
Associate Attorney $106,013 ATT
Principal Court Analyst . $104,792 ADM
Associate Attorney $98,045 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $68,228 ADM
Court Analyst $64,592 ADM
Secretary ) $61,362 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $55,288 ADM
Secretary $54,258 ADM
Secretary $49,522 ADM
Secretary $47,154 ADM
Total FTE - 16
Personal Service $1,540,434
Non-Personal Service $240,049

Total $1,780,483



Attorney Discipline - 4th Department

Chf Atty Grievence Commission $162,861 ATT
Principal Attorney $154,849 ATT
Principal Attorney $154,849 ATT
Principal Attorney $150,106 ATT
Principal Attorney $143,552 ATT
Principal Attorney $143,398 ATT
Associate Attorney $129,773 ATT
Senior Court Analyst $94,857 ADM
Senior Court Analyst $91,613 ADM
Senior Court Analyst $91,613 ADM
Court Analyst $75,988 ADM .
Court Analyst $75,988 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $68,228 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $68,228 ADM
Secretary $63,730 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $62,461 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $60,250 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $50,112 ADM
Total FTE - 18
Personal Service $1,842,456
Non-Personal Service $319,937

Total $2,162,393
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COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Complaints against attorneys, registered at an address in Manhattan or the Bronx, are
investigated and resolved by the Attorney Grievance Committee for the Supreme Court,
Appellate Division, First Judicial Department (Committee). The Chief Attorney of the
Committee manages a staff of over 40 salaried lawyers and non-lawyers (staff). Together
with a volunteer group of lawyers and non-lawyers (collectively referred to as Committee
members), the Chief Attorney’s Office processed 4,005 complaints in 2017.

Committee members are volunteers appointed by the Court who fulfill both adjudicative
and executive functions. Most significantly, they decide, after appropriate investigation
by the Chief Attorney’s Office, whether a disciplinary proceeding should be brought
against an attorney, whether a private admonition or letter of advisement should be
issued, or whether a complaint should be dismissed. If a disciplinary proceeding is
approved, the Court may appoint a Referee to conduct a hearing and prepare a written
report, stating the Referee’s findings of fact, conclusions of law and recommended
sanction. Thereafter, the Court makes the final determination on both liability and
sanction based on its review of the record.

In 2017, two separate volunteer Committees, each with a Chair, Vice-Chair and 19 other
members, reviewed and approved staff’s recommendations to dismiss, advise, admonish
or formally charge respondents. Each volunteer Committee operates independently and
meets six times annually.

Below are brief biographies of all of the volunteer Committee members who served, with
dedication and energy, highlighting their diverse accomplishments:

Emnest J. Collazo (Chair)

Mr. Collazo has practiced labor and employment law for nearly 40 years. He began his
career with the NLRB following his graduation from Columbia Law School. Two years
later, he became an associate at Simpson Thacher & Bartlett, and, within five years,
became a partner. Ten years later, Mr. Collazo left to establish the predecessor firm to
Collazo Florentino & Keil, LLP, a boutique firm practicing management-side labor and
employment law and litigation. Mr. Collazo is a Fellow of the College of Labor and
Employment Lawyers, and a former member of the Advisory Committee to the New York

1



State Ethics Commission of the Council on Foreign Relations and the Advisory
Committee to the Rules Committee of the Second Circuit. He has served on the boards of
the Federal Defenders of New York; the United Hospital Fund of New York; the Latin
American Program of the Woodrow Wilson International Center for Scholars; the
September 11th Fund; the New York Community Trust; and the Washington Office on
Latin America. As a City Bar member, he has served on the City Bar's Executive
Committee, the Committee on Professional and Judicial Ethics, the Committee on Labor
and Employment, and the 2011 Nominating Committee. He also served as the City Bar's
representative to the NYSBA House of Delegates and its 2009 and 2010 Nominating
Committees.

Charlotte Moses Fischman (Chair)

Ms. Fischman is the Co-General Counsel at Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP, where
she was a litigation partner for many years. She is a cum laude, Phi Beta Kappa graduate
of Brandeis University and a magna cum laude graduate of Columbia Law School, where
she was an editor of the Columbia Law Review. She has served on the boards of the
Legal Aid Society, the New York Community Trust, the September 11" Fund, the
Mexican American Legal Defense Fund, and was a Commissioner of the Ethics
Commission for the Unified Court System. As a member of the Association of the Bar of
the City of New York, she served on the Executive Committee, Judiciary Committee and
Committee on Professional and Judicial Ethics. In years past, she was an Adjunct
Professor of Law at Columbia Law School in the filed of ethics; served as President of
the National Alliance for the Mentally [II-NYC Metro (NAMI-Metro); and was a member
of the Policy Committee of the predecessor to the Grievance Committee, the
Departmental Disciplinary Committee.

Myron Kirschbaum (Vice-Chair)

Mr. Kirschbaum was a partner in the litigation department of Kaye Scholer LLP (which
has since merged with Arnold & Porter) for over 30 years, concentrating on securities and
commercial litigation, in which capacity he tried both jury and non-jury cases to verdict in
a variety of fields including bankruptcy and antitrust, in addition to the above. He later
served as Special Litigation Counsel to the firm. Both as a partner and Special Counsel he
chaired the firm's Professional Ethics Committee for approximately 25 years. Mr.
Kirschbaum is a summa cum laude graduate of Yeshiva University and magha cum laude
graduate of Harvard Law School, where he served as an editor of the Harvard Law
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Review. Later he clerked for the Honorable Paul R. Hays of the United States Court of
Appeals for the Second Circuit. Before becoming Vice Chair of the Attorney Grievance
Committee as currently constituted in 2016, he served on the Policy Committee of the
previous Departmental Disciplinary Committee for approximately 13 years.

Abigail T. Reardon (Vice-Chair)

Ms. Reardon is a partner in the firm of Nixon Peabody, LLP, where she litigates complex
commercial litigation. She is a graduate of Duke University School of Law. Ms.
Reardon is admitted to practice law in the State of New York, the U.S. Court of Appeals,
Second Circuit, the U.S. District Court, Southern District of New York, and the U.S.
District Court, Fastern District of New York. Ms. Reardon is a member of the Arbitration
Commiitee of The Association of the Bar of the City of New York and a member of the
Duke University Law School Board of Visitors. She has served on the Town of Bedford,
New York Master Plan Committee. She is a former trustee of Windward School, White
Plains, New York, and a governor of the Nantucket Yacht Club.

Robert M. Abrahams

Mr. Abrahams is of counsel to Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP. Mr. Abrahams concentrates
his practice in complex commercial litigation, including securities, real estate,
employment, derivative actions, trusts and estates, partnership disputes, defending claims
brought against lawyers and law firms, and director and officer liability matters. For
many years, he headed his firm's litigation department and was a member of the firm's
executive committee. His many significant representations include a major interdealer

broker in numerous regulatory investigations, arbitrations and civil litigations, including a
five-month jury trial and related FINRA arbitration in which his clients recovered in
excess of $140 million; 173 former Dewey LeBoeuf partners in the successful defense of
a $200-million claim; one of the largest law firms in the world in a $100-million
malpractice suit. Mr. Abrahams has tried more than 100 civil cases and arbitrations and
he has recently served as an arbitrator appointed by the International Chamber of
Commerce. He is listed in Benchmark Litigation: The Definitive Guide to America’s
Leading Litigation Firms & Attorneys (“National Star” in securities litigation), Best
Lawyers in America, The Legal 500 US, New York Super Lawyers, Who's Who in
America and Who's Who in the World. Mr. Abrahams is the author of the “Commercial
Real Estate” chapter of Business and Commercial Litigation in the Federal

Courts (Thomson West, 2010-2016) and the “Document Discovery” chapter
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of Commercial Litigation in New York State Courts (Thomson West and the New York
County Lawyers” Association, 2011-2015). He received his B.A. from Hobart College
and his I.D., with distinction, from Hofstra University School of Law, where he was
editor-in-chief of the Hofstra Law Review.

Daniel R. Alonso

Mr. Alonso is currently Managing Director and General Counsel of the global compliance
firm Exiger. He is a graduate of Cornell University (1987) and N.Y.U. School of Law
(1990), and served as law clerk to Judge Joseph W. Bellacosa of the New York Court of
Appeals. Mr. Alonso was previously a litigation partner at Kaye Scholer LLP, and has
also served in senior positions as a federal and state prosecutor, first as the Chief of the
Criminal Division in the United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of New
York, and later as the Chief Assistant District Attorney in the Manhattan District
Attorney’s Office. He is a member of the Board of Directors of the Fund for Modern
Courts; the New York State Bar Association’s Committee on Standards of Attorney
Conduct; and the Board of Editors of the Journal of Financial Compliance. In 2012-13 he
was Co-Chair of the New York State White Collar Crime Task Force, and between 2007
and 2009, Mr. Alonso served by appointment of the Governor of New York as a member
of the New York State Commission on Public Integrity.

Robert J. Anello

Mr. Anello, a principal of Morvillo Abramowitz Grand lason & Anello PC, has litigated
in the federal and state courts for more than 30 years. He focuses his practice on white
collar criminal defense, regulatory enforcement matters, complex civil litigation, internal
investigations and reviews, and appeals. Mr. Anello is widely recognized for his skills as
a criminal and civil trial attorney, and his ability to negotiate effectively on behalf of his
clients. He is President Emeritus of the Federal Bar Council, and a Fellow of the
American College of Trial Lawyers, the American Bar Foundation, and the New York
State Bar Foundation. Mr. Anello is co-author of the two-volume treatise: White Collar
Crime: Business and Regulatory Offenses, Rev. Ed. (2018), and an author of the White
Collar Crime column for the New York Law Journal. He is a regular contributor to The
Insider Blog on Forbes.com. He is a frequent contributor to numerous other publications
and a speaker on topics in the areas of white collar criminal law, securities law,
professional ethics, and trial tactics. Mr. Anello also is widely known for his dedication
to organizations serving the legal community. He was a member of the Nominating




Committee for the Association of the Bar of the City of New York and the New York
State Bar Association’s House of Delegates. Mr. Anello currently serves on the Board of
Trustees of the Supreme Court Historical Society. He is a Fellow of the Litigation
Counsel of America. He is also a member of numerous bar associations. Mr. Anello

received his 1.D., magna cum laude, from Syracuse University College of Law, and his
B.A. from SUNY Albany.

Marjorie E. Berman
Ms. Berman, a partner at Krantz & Berman LLP, practices in the areas of employment

litigation, complex commercial litigation and white-collar criminal defense. In addition,
she provides mediation services and employment counseling. She represents a diverse
group of clients, ranging from individuals and partnerships to small, mid-size and Fortune
500 Companies. She has been recognized by Super Lawyers as one of Metro New York's
top fifty women lawyers. Ms. Berman graduated magna cum laude and Phi Beta Kappa
from Brown University in 1983. She received her I.D. from Columbia University in 1989
where she was a Harlan Fiske Stone Scholar. Following law school, she clerked for the
Honorable Naomi Reice Buchwald of the Southern District of New York. Ms. Berman
presently serves as President of the Federal Bar Council Inn of Court and Secretary of the
Federal Bar Council. She previously served as Secretary of the Columbia Law School
Alumni Association and remains a Board Member. She has also been active in alumni
affairs for Brown University. Ms. Berman currently serves on the Board of Day One
(www.dayoneny.org), an advocacy group committed to ending dating abuse and domestic
violence among teens and young adults. Ms. Berman has an active mediation practice
and has been appointed to the mediation panels for the Southern District of New York,
the Eastern District of New York and the Commercial Division of New York Supreme
Court.

Thomas Birnbaum

Mr. Birnbaum is President of NYC Realty Advisors, LLC, the commercial real estate
brokerage firm he founded in 2006, The firm concentrates on office leasing transactions,
investment sales and consulting. He began in his career in real estate in 1972 with ten
years at The Edward S. Gordon Company, Inc., which today has evolved into CBRE. Mr.
Birnbaum attended Tabor Academy, followed by Hobart College and New York
University School of Commerce. Mr. Birnbaum served in the United States Naval Air
Reserves as an avionics technician. He has been a member of The Real Estate Board of




New York Inc. since 1972 and the Young Men's/Women's Real Estate Association since
1976.

Jovee M. Bove

Ms. Bove, until September 2013, was Senior Vice President for Grants and Special
Projects at The New York Community Trust, the community foundation for the New
York metropolitan area. With The Trust since 1978, she administered a wide range of
grant programs and special projects. Before joining The Trust, she held administrative
and planning positions in health, mental health, and substance abuse agencies. She was
active in several nonprofit, civic, and philanthropic organizations, including the boards of
the National AIDS Fund, Philanthropy New York, the Primary Care Development
Corporation, Grantmakers in Health, and Funders Concerned About AIDS. Ms. Bove
served on the boards of the Institute for Contemporary Psychotherapy, the Nonprofit
Coordinating Committee of New York, United Neighborhood Houses, and the Women's
City Club as well as the New York Academy of Medicine School Health Programs
Advisory Committee. She was the former president of the Health Care Executive Forum,
and she served on the Program Committee. In 1989, Ms. Bove received the Council on
Foundations' Robert W. Scrivner Award for Creative Grantmaking for her leadership in
shaping the local and national philanthropic response to the AIDS epidemic. She is a
graduate of Wellesley College and holds a masters degree in Public Administration from
Indiana University; she was member of the Indiana University School of Public and
Environmental Affairs Distinguished Alumni Council. Ms. Bove was a fellow of the New
York Academy of Medicine, and a visiting lecturer at New York Medical College's
School of Public Health. Ms. Bove passed away on August 15, 2018, after a long and
courageous battle with cancer.

Hon. James M. Catterson

Judge Catterson is a partner at Arnold & Porter Kaye Scholer LLP, specializing in
complex commercial litigation and appellate practice. Prior to joining the firm, Judge
Catterson was an Associate Justice of the Appellate Division, First Department of the
New York State Supreme Court, where he participated in more than six thousand civil
and criminal appeals, and hundreds of disciplinary proceedings. Prior to his elevation to
the Appellate Division, Judge Catterson sat as a trial judge in a civil part in the Tenth
Judicial District of the New York State Supreme Court. Before his election to the
Supreme Court, Judge Catterson served as Suffolk County's Deputy County Attorney and
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throughout his career has litigated on behalf of a broad spectrum of federal and local
entities at the administrative, trial and appellate levels in both federal and state courts. He
has prepared and argued appeals before the United States Court of Appeals for the
Second Circuit and the Supreme Court of the State of New York, Appellate Division,
Second Judicial Department. He also served as an Assistant United States Attorney in the
Eastern District of New York. Judge Catterson spent the majority of his tenure in the
EDNY as Chief of the Asset Forfeiture Unit. He was an adjunct professor at Cardozo
Law School and Touro Law School and received his JD from St. John's University Scheool
of L.aw and his BA from Colgate University.

Vincent T. Chang
Mr. Chang is a Partner at Wollmuth Maher & Deutsch, specializing in complex litigation
in such areas as real estate, insurance, bankruptcy, subprime mortgage securitizations,

hedge funds, reinsurance, bondholder litigation, investment banking, antitrust, and
securities. Mr. Chang is a graduate of Harvard College, magna cum laude, and Harvard
Law School, cum laude. Mr, Chang clerked for the Hon. Robert B. Krupansky, United
States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit, and was an associate and then counsel at
Davis Polk & Wardwell. Mr. Chang is a past President of the Asian American Bar
Association of New York and serves on the Executive Committee and Board of Directors
and as Treasurer of the New York County Lawyers Association and has served as
co-Chair of its Federal Courts Committee and as Chair of the NYCLA Foundation. He
also serves on the Nominating Committee and the House of Delegates of the New York
State Bar Association. He serves on the Task Force on Gun Violence of the New York
State Bar Association and on its Standing Committee on Court Structure and Operations.
Mr. Chang serves on the American Bar Association's Standing Committee on the
American Judicial System. Mr, Chang has served as Vice Chair of two committees of the
Antitrust Section of the American Bar Association. Mr. Chang is a recipient of the New
York City Bar Association's Diversity & Inclusion Champion Award. Mr. Chang has
been listed as a "Super Lawyer" in business litigation in New York, a designation limited
to 5% of the lawyers in a given state.

Sylvia F. Chin

Ms. Chin is partner/of counsel in the firm of White & Case LLP. She has considerable
experience in corporate and commercial financing with an emphasis on asset-based
financing transactions. She graduated from New York University and Fordham
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University School of Law. After graduation she clerked for Hon. Lawrence W. Pierce in
the United States District Court of the Southern District of New York. She is an adjunct
professor at Fordham University School of Law. She also serves on the governing
Council of the ABA Business Law Section and as Chair of the First Judicial District of
the NY Bar Foundation, President of the Asian American Law Fund of New York, a
director of Stichting to Promote Women’s World Banking, and a trustee of the Fordham
Law Alumni Association. She is a member of the American Law Institute, the ABA
Legal Opinions Committee, the Tribar Opinions Committee, and the Association
Advisory Board of the Working Group on Legal Opinions. She also served as President
of the American College of Commercial Finance Lawyers, President of the American
College of Investment Counsel, President of the Asian American Bar Association of New
York, President of the NAPABA Law Foundation, Board Secretary of Women's World
Banking, Chair of the ABA Business Law Section Diversity and Inclusion Committee,
Treasurer of the National Asian Pacific American Americas Bar Association, a Director
of the New York County Lawyers Association and was a representative to the NYSBA
House of Delegates. Her awards include the Jean Allard Glass Cutter Award of the ABA
Business Law Section, the CLEO Legacy Diversity Award, AABANY's Norman Lau Kee
Trailblazer Award, Leonard F. Manning Achievement Award from Fordham Law
Review, the NAPABA Northeast Region Trailblazers Award, the Fordham Law Women
Distinguished Alumna Award and the Pace Law School AALSA Achievement Award.
She has been listed in the Guide to the World's Leading Structured Finance and
Securitization Lawyers, Euromoney's Women in Business Law, and New York Metro
Super Lawyers.

Catherine A. Christian

Ms. Christian is the New York County District Attorney’s Office Special Assistant
District Attorney for External Affairs and Chief of the Elder Abuse Unit. After
graduating from Dickinson School of Law, she began her legal career as an Assistant
District Attorney in the Office’s Trial Division under Robert M. Morgenthau. She
prosecuted a wide variety of crimes, including, domestic violence and homicides. In
1995, she joined a private law firm, and later served as an Assistant Counsel for the New
York State Commission of Investigation. She subsequently served as the Principal Law
Clerk to the Honorable Rosalyn Richter. Ms. Christian was reappointed as an ADA in
1998 and assigned to the Office of the Special Narcotics Prosecutor, serving in various
positions, including, as a member of the Executive Staff. In 2014, District Attorney
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Cyrus R. Vance, Jr., appointed Ms. Christian Chief of the Elder Abuse Unit. Ms.
Christian is a member of the Appellate Division First Department’s Attorney Grievance
Committee and Character and Fitness Committee. From 2007-2008, Ms. Christian was
President of the New York County Lawyers’ Association.

Daniel D. Chu

Mr, Chu is the principal and founding member of The Law Offices of Daniel D. Chu. He
represents clients in state and federal matters with a focus on criminal defense. Mr. Chu
began his legal career as an Assistant District Attorney in the Queens County District
Attorney's Office and later became a senior associate at Stern & Montana, LLP. Mayor
Michael Bloomberg appointed him a Commissioner and subsequently Chair of the NYC
Civilian Complaint Review Board. A graduate of the St. John's University School of
Law, he is currently an adjunct professor at his alma mater and a 2014 recipient of the
Adjunct Teaching Award.

Richard J. Condon

Mr. Condon was appointed as the Special Commissioner of Investigation for the New
York City School District by former Mayor Michael R. Bloomberg on July 1, 2002, and
continues under Mayor Bill de Blasio, The office of the Special Commissioner of
Investigation for the New York City School District investigates criminal activity, sexual
misconduct, unethical conduct, conflicts of interest and other wrongdoing occutring
within the City's schools. Mr. Condon’s staff includes 5 attorneys who oversee
investigations and 49 investigators with backgrounds in the New York City Police
Department and other law enforcement agencies; he has a budget of $5 million and
reports to the New York City Commissioner of Investigation. Mr. Condon's career in
public service includes having served as Police Commissioner and First Deputy
Commissioner with the New York City Police Department and Deputy Coordinator of
Criminal Justice for New York City, all under Mayor Koch. He has also served as the
Commissioner of the Division of Criminal Justice Services for New York State under
Governor Mario Cuomo. Prior to his appointment as Special Commissioner of
Investigation, Mr. Condon was Director of Administrative Services & Worldwide
Security for Paine Webber. During that time he also served as a Commissioner on the
New York City Civilian Complaint Review Board. A native of New York City, Mr.
Condon holds a Bachelors of Arts degree from Pace University and a Masters of Arts
degree in Criminal Justice from John Jay College of Criminal Justice, and is a graduate of
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the Senior Command Course at the British National Police College in Bramshill, England.

Ralph C. Dawson

Mr. Dawson, of counsel at Norton Rose Fulbright, US LLP, is engaged in the practice of
labor and employment law and civil litigation in the New York office. His practice
involves the representation of employers in proceedings before the courts and
administrative agencies. He also represents employers in collective bargaining
negotiations and in grievance and arbitration proceedings under labor contracts. In the
broader employment law area, Mr. Dawson represents employers in courts and in

administrative proceedings involving claims of wrongful discharge and claims of
employment discrimination brought under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the
Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act and related
federal and state statutes. He has also represented clients in a variety of commercial
disputes involving non-competition, other restrictive covenants, breach of contract and
tort claims. He also provides counseling and training to various companies in the
securities industry and other industries. Mr. Dawson's interest in public policy matters
has led him to collaborate with our Public Finance Department of which he is now a part.
In this capacity he has been part of the our teams acting as underwriter's counsel for
various financial institutions: (a) graduate of Yale University and the Columbia
University Schoo! of Law, Mr. Dawson was licensed to practice law in New York in
1977, is also a member of the Washington, D.C. Bar,. and is admitted to practice before
the United States Supreme Court, various federal district courts and the Courts of Appeal
for the Second and Fifth Circuits. He is also a member of American Bar Association,
New York City Bar Association, Past Service on: Civil Rights Committee, Metropolitan
Black Bar Association of New York, and serves on the Court Appointed Merit Selection
Panel for Magistrate Judges in the United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York. He has been recognized as a New York Metro Super Lawyers in the area of
employment & labor from 2012 - 2016.

Peter G. Fikenberry
Mr. Eikenberry is sole proprietor of a two person law firm in New York City specializing
in complex commercial litigation in the State and Federal courts, including employment,

art law, contract, fraud, international, securities, and bankruptcy adversary disputes.
Previously, inter alia, he had been an associate at White & Case and a partner at Seyfarth
Shaw. He was educated at The Ohio State University (B.A. and LL.B.), where he was
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Note Editor of the Law Journal and where he is a member of its National Council. He is a
member of the NYCBA Committee on International Human Rights (2015- ) and has been
a member of its committees to Encourage Judicial Service (Founding Chair 1989-1992)
Orison Marden Lecture Committee (Chair 2005-2009) Federal Courts, Judiciary, State
Courts of Superior Jurisdiction, Litigation and the Council on Judicial Administration. In
1998 he led an NYCBA Human Rights Mission to Northern Ireland. He has been a
member of NYSBA Committees on Courts of Appellate Jurisdiction and Federal Courts,
a Vice President of the Federal Bar Council, and has served on FBC Committees on
Courts of the Second Circuit (Chair 2000-2003) and Public Service (Founding Chair
1991-1994.) He was Editor in Chief of the FBC Quarterly (2007-2010) and was a co-
author of the FBC's Proposed Deposition Rules for the Second Circuit, 131 F.R.D. 613
(1990.) Mr. Eikenberry was the Convenor and is a member of the Steering Committee of
the New York Conference on Immigration Representation led by Chief Judge Robert
Katzmann of the Second Circuit Court of Appeals. He is a Fellow of the New York Bar
Foundation. He is author of Chapter 9, Specific Performance and Rescission in Haig,
Commercial Litigation in New York State Courts (West 2010.)

Donna Fishman

Ms. Fishman is currently the Deputy Director of the Fund for Public Health in NYC. Ms.
Fishman has made a career of serving others. For more than two decades, she has worked
in the nonprofit sector as a champion for the poor and underprivileged. She is also an
accomplished fundraiser, both professionally and as a volunteer. Before joining the
Fund, she served for five years as the Chief Executive Officer of Gilda's Club
Westchester, whose mission is to provide social and emotional support to all those
affected by cancer. Her previous positions include Deputy Director of the Jewish Fund for
Justice and Vice President for External Affairs, Community Service Society of New
York. Ms. Fishman has played an essential role in managing organizations or advising
top-level managers. She is skilled at financial, strategic, and performance management
and at all aspects of external relations, including fundraising, board relations, and public
communications. She has been an active fundraiser for Bank Street College of Education
and served as a co-chair of the Development Committee for the School for Children at the
Bank Street College of Education. Ms. Fishman has served on a number of nonprofit
boards, including the Pratt Center for Community Development and Ansche Chesed
synagogue. She holds an MPA from Columbia University and a BA from the School of
General Studies, Columbia University and The Jewish Theological Seminary.
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Darrell S. Gay

Mr. Gay has practiced law for more than 30 years. After graduating from Columbia Law
School, Mr. Gay served as a trial attorney with the NLRB. He then headed an
employment and labor law boutique for several years in New York City, and after that
served as partner at two other significant international firms, DLA Piper, US LLP and
Coudert Brothers, serving as the head of the U.S. practice group for Coudert. Mr. Gay
also served as Commissioner with the New York State Civil Service Commission. Mr.
Gay joined Arent Fox in 2008, where he continues to practice labor and employment law.
Mr. Gay is a Fellow of the College of Labor and Employment Lawyers and a Fellow of
the American Bar Foundation. He is one of the original founding former board members
of the Minority Corporate Counsel Association, an organization that advocates the
expanded hiring, retention and promotion of minority attorneys in corporate law

departments and law firms. He is the former chair, and a founding board member of the
National Employment Law Council, the leading association of minority management-side
employment lawyers, Mr. Gay chaired the task force merging the historical Harlem
Lawyers Association and the Bedford Stuyvesant Lawyers Association, to form the
Metropolitan Black Bar Association, the largest minority bar in New York State. Mr. Gay
previously chaired the Labor Law and Commercial Law sections of the National Bar
Association and is a member of the American Bar Association and the Association of the
Bar of the City of New York.

Mark S. Gottlieb

Mr. Gottlieb is the business valuation and forensic accounting practice leader at MSG
located in New York City. As a recognized expert, Mark’s practice is related to various
financial issues and litigation. He has over 30 years of experience. Mr. Gottlieb is also
frequently appointed by the court as a neutral expert and a current Adjunct Professor at
Fordham Law School.

Nicholas A. Gravante. Jr.

Mr. Gravante is a partner at Boies, Schiller & Flexner, LLP, with extensive trial
experience in the areas of complex commercial litigation, business crimes and antitrust
litigation, He also serves as the firm's general counsel and sits on its executive
committee. Mr. Gravante has consistently been honored as one of the country’s top
lawyers, having been named among Lawdragon's 500 Leading Lawyers in America and
New York’s Best Lawyers, and also by Super Lawyers. Most recently, he secured a victory
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in the battle for control of the Arizona Iced Tea empire, successfully defending the
company’s founder against claims seeking hundreds of millions of dollars. He is also
known as counsel to former shareholders of American International Group in litigation
arising from the financial crisis, as well as to several hedge funds, the Andy Warhol
Foundation and to bondholders litigating over Argentine government debt. Previously,
Mr. Gravante was a managing partner at Barrett Gravante Carpinello & Stern LLP. Mr.
Gravante sits on the Second Department’s Judicial Screening Committee and is a member
of the Citizens Crime Commission of New York City. He chairs the Brooklyn Public
Library’s board of trustees and is a member of the board of trustees for the Community
Service Society and ESS Sheltering Arms. He was a member of Mayor Bill de Blasio's
Inauguration Committee.

Keisha-Ann G. Gray

Ms. Gray is a distinguished trial lawyer who has secured significant victories in both
federal and state courts. As a partner in the Proskauer Rose, LLP’s Labor & Employment
Law Department, she focuses her practice on civil law with an emphasis on litigating
highly-sensitive employment discrimination claims and conducting sensitive high-profile
investigations. Because of the nature of Ms. Gray's practice, many of her successful
matters have resulted in non-public resolutions and remain confidential. Counseling is
another cornerstone of her practice. As a seasoned trial counsel and litigator, Ms. Gray
draws from her experiences in the courtroom before juries to help inform her clients,
including many Fortune 500 companies, on issues pertinent to employment law and
complaint prevention. Ms. Gray frequently speaks and writes on trial practice and
employment discrimination defense matters. Ms. Gray has been recognized by The
Network Journal, The New York Law Journal's Rising Stars and Y WCA of New York's
Academy of Women Leaders. Prior to joining Proskauer in 2007, Ms. Gray was an
Assistant U.S. Attorey in the Eastern District of New York and a former federal law
clerk, having served two years in the Chambers of the Honorable Jaime Pieras Jr., Senior
Judge in the District Court for the District of Puerto Rico.

Robert I.. Haig

Mr. Haig is a litigation partner at the law firm of Kelley Drye & Warren LLP. Heisa
former President of the New York County Lawyers' Association. Mr. Haig has served as
the Chair of the Committee on the Judiciary of the Association of the Bar of the City of
New York and also chaired that Association's Council on Judicial Administration. He has
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served as a member of the New York State Bar Association's Executive Committee and
was the founder and first Chair of that Association's Commercial and Federal Litigation
Section. He is a former President of the New York Bar Foundation and a member of the
American Law Institute. Mr. Haig was the Co-Chair of the Commercial Courts Task
Force established by Chief Judge Judith S. Kaye in 1995 to create and refine the
Commercial Division of the New York State Supreme Court. He is now the Chair of the
Commercial Division Advisory Council established by Chief Judge Jonathan Lippman in
2013 to advise him on an ongoing basis about all matters involving and surrounding the
Commercial Division as well as to keep him apprised of developments in the business
world that may affect the court system. On November 16, 2008, he was inducted as an
Honorary Charter Member of the American College of Business Court Judges in
recognition of his efforts to develop business courts in New York and many other states
and countries. Mr. Haig is the Editor-in-Chief of a six-volume treatise, entitled,
Commercial Litigation in New York State Courts, and of two other multi-volume treatises.

Danielle C. Lesser

Ms. Lesser serves as the Chair of the Business Litigation Department of Morrison Cohen,
LLP. Ms. Lesser is an experienced trial attorney whose diverse practice involves all
phases of litigation, from pleading through verdict and appeal. Ms. Lesser’s practice
includes both litigating and advising transactional clients with respect to litigation risk
and litigation avoidance strategies. Ms. Lesser has successfully handled a broad range of
litigations in state and federal court as well as in arbitrations and is often retained on the
eve of trial. Her representations include public companies, multi-million dollar private
companies, hedge funds, private equity funds, investment bankers, start-ups, developers,
real estate companies, information and technology companies, high net worth individuals,
and partnerships in all types of business disputes, ranging from restructuring, hotel and
hospitality, real estate, and contract disputes to enforcement of restrictive covenants, She
received her law degree from Fordham University School of Law.

Lisa A. Linsky

Ms. Linsky is a partner in the international law firm McDermott Will & Emery LLP and a
resident in the New York City office. As a member of the Trial Group, Lisa focuses her
practice on complex litigation, including commercial, products liability, trusts and estates
and LGBT civil rights litigation and business-related investigations. Ms. Linsky also
serves as outside pro bono counsel to the Mattachine Society of Washington DC. The
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Mattachine Society is an educational and research non-profit organization that is devoted
to recovering documents evidencing LGBT American history by conducting original
archival research at the National Archives, Presidential Libraries and public and private
repositories. In 20135, Lisa co-lead a team of McDermott lawyers that submitted an
amicus brief to the United States Supreme Court in the Obergefell consolidated marriage
cases. The partnership between the Mattachine Society and McDermott entails “archive
activism” and the rescue of historic governmental documents which establish a paper trail
of animus and discrimination exhibited against LGBT Americans dating back to the
1940s. Ms. Linsky was McDermott’s first Partner-in-Charge of Firm-wide Diversity, and
created and chaired the Firm-wide Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT)
Diversity and Inclusion Committee from 2006-2014. For 7 years, Lisa was also a
member and Officer of the Board of Directors for Lambda Legal, the leading LGBT civil
rights legal organization in the United States. She is now a member of Lambda Legal’s
National Leadership Council. In 2014, Ms. Linsky became a member of the Board of
Directors for the LGBT Community Center of NYC, and co-chairs the annual Fall
Women’s Event. Ms. Linsky comes to McDermott with extensive trial and public
speaking experience. She was formerly with the Westchester County District Attorney’s
Office, where she ran the Special Prosecutions Division, which included the Child Abuse,
Elder Abuse and Sex Crimes Bureaus. Ms. Linsky has received countless awards and
recognitions for her work in promoting diversity, inclusion and equality including the
prestigious Cambers Award for “LLGBT Equality Lawyer of the Year” (2016) and the
“Paula L. Ettelbrick Award for LGBT Lawyer of the Year” (2016) presented by the
Minority Corporate Counsel Association. Ms. Linsky has also authored numerous articles
and papers on diversity and inclusion in the legal profession. She is the creator of the
Huffington Post Blog, “Out and About: LGBT Legal.”

Eve Rachel Markewich

Ms. Markewich is a member of Markewich and Rosenstock LILP, a Manhattan law firm.
Ms. Markewich's practice is devoted solely to litigation, including business litigation and
trusts and estates litigation. Markewich and Rosenstock has been recognized in Best Law
Firms, and Ms. Markewich has been designated by Super Lawyers and Best Lawyers; she
is AV rated by Martindale-Hubbell. Ms. Markewich was educated at the Dalton School,
Harvard College and Columbia Law School.
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Charles G. Moerdler

Mr. Moerdler is the Co-Chair of Stroock's Litigation Practice Group. His practice is
broad-based, including concentrations in real estate and land use, health care,
international law, labor and administrative law, as well as state and federal appellate
practice. Mr. Moerdler's public service career includes current service as a Board
Member of the Metropolitan Transportation Authority, the New York City Housing
Development Corp., and as a Member of the New York City Board of Collective
Bargaining, as well as Commissioner of Housing and Buildings under Mayor John V.
Lindsay. Mr. Moerdler has represented many of New York's leading real estate
developers and owners, as well as real estate trade organizations, in a variety of contexts
ranging from antitrust, to land use and zoning, to brokerage and contract disputes. Among
the many organizations that have retained Mr. Moerdler as outside general counsel are
one of the largest hospitals in the country, one of the nation's largest health maintenance
organizations and a major New York City daily newspaper, for which he also has served
as a director. He regularly counsels Austria's largest bank in international litigation and
served as board chairman of its U.S. subsidiary. He also acts for Austria's largest
electricity and power enterprise, one of its largest realtors and has represented other major
European companies. Mr. Moerdler represents the American Federation of Teachers and
has served as lead negotiator for numerous municipal labor unions, including the United
Federation of Teachers and the Patrolmen's Benevolent Association. Mr. Moerdler is the
Vice Chair of the Character & Fitness Committee. Mr. Moerdler was admitted to the
New York Bar 1956. He holds an LLB from Fordham Law School and a BA from Long
Island University.

Elliot Moskowitz

Mr. Moskowitz is a Partner in Davis Polk's Litigation Department, representing major
financial institutions and creditors in connection with complex bankruptcies and
reorganizations. He has played a key role in some of the most contentious proceedings in
recent years with significant victories at both the trial and appellate level in courts around
the country. He also has extensive experience representing corporate clients and
professional firms in connection with a wide range of state and federal regulatory
inquiries and civil litigation, including securities litigation and professional malpractice
claims. Mr. Moskowitz has been recognized as a leading lawyer by numerous industry
publications, including Law360 (Rising Star), Benchmark Litigation (Future Star / New
York) and Turnarounds & Workouts (Outstanding Young Restructuring Lawyer).
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Eredric S. Newman

Mr. Newman is a founding partner of Hoguet Newman Regal & Kenney, LLP, a
commercial litigation firm in Manhattan. He is a legal generalist with decades of
experience in commercial litigation, business advice, corporate transactions, employment
counseling and alternative dispute resolution. Mr. Newman is an Adjunct Professor of
Law at Fordham University School of Law where he co-teaches a seminar on Professional
Responsibility, Legal Ethics in Civil Litigation. Mr. Newman is a member of the
National Advisory Board of the Berman Institute of Bioethics of Johns Hopkins
University. His numerous other civic, public service and non-profit positions have
included: Court-appointed Mediator in the U.S. District Court, Southern District of New
York; Director, Columbia Law School Association; Trustee, The Calhoun School, New
York City; Founding Director and Vice President, American Corporate Counsel
Association, New York Chapter; Director and Secretary, New York Fire Safety
Foundation; and Sustaining Life Fellow, American Bar Foundation. Mr. Newman
graduated from Harvard College (A.B. cum laude 1967) and Columbia Law School (J.D.
1970). He also received an Executive M.B.A. from the University of Virginia Darden
School of Business (TEP 1984).

Ricardo E. Oquendo
Mr. Oquendo is the founder and co-managing partner at Oquendo Deraco, PLLC and

Affiliates, and was previously associated with Davidoff Malito & Hutcher, LLP,
Oquendo Ramirez Zayas Torres & Martinez, L.LP, LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene & MacRae,
LLP (Dewey LeBoeuf) and with Kalkines, Arky, Zall & Bernstein, LLP (Manett Phelps
& Phillips). Mr. Oquendo has over 27 years experience as a business transactional and
commercial litigation attorney with a special focus on business, commercial and real
estate litigation, commercial and real estate transactions, commercial landlord/tenant
matters (leases and litigation), special needs/affordable housing development/tax credit
financing, business finance and lending, business contracts, employment law,
entertainment, fashion and media transactions, intellectual property licensing and
litigation, hospitality and restaurants, nonprofit/tax exempt organizations, professional
licensing and discipline and government relations/public affairs. Mr. Oquendo is a
graduate of Rutgers University School of Law. Mr. Oquendo is admitted to practice law
in the State of New York, the U.S. Supreme Court, the U.S. District Court, Southern,
Eastern and Northern Districts of New York. Mr. Oquendo is a member of the Board of
Directors of Latino Justice/Puerto Rican Legal Defense and Education Fund and is a
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Regent Emeritus having served as a member of the New York State Board of Regents
from 1998-2003.

Lee S. Richards, III

Mr. Richards a partner at Richards Kibbe & Orbe, is experienced in trial work and
securities, regulatory, banking, white-color criminal and commercial litigation, and
internal investigations. He received his B.A., summa cum laude, from Amherst College
in 1972, where he was a member of Phi Beta Kappa, and his J.D. from Columbia
University School of Law in 1975, where he was a Harlan Fiske Stone Scholar and a
Parkhurst Fellow. Mr. Richards was a law clerk to the Honorable Milton Pollack, United
States District Judge for the Southern District of New York, from 1975 to 1976. From
1977 to 1983 Mr. Richards was an Assistant United States Attorney for the Southern
District of New York.

Michael Roberts

Mr. Roberts is a partner in the firm Roberts & Roberts where he litigates real estate and
commercial matters. In addition, he does transactional real estate work. He received his
Bachelor of Arts degree from Columbia University. He received his JD degree from
Cardoza School of Law in New York. He is admitted to practice law in the State of NY,
US Court of Appeals, 2nd Circuit, US Eastern District Court and US Court Southern
District.

Dayvid M. Rubin

Mr. Rubin is a partner at Golenbock Eiseman Assor Bell & Peskoe, LLP, a general
practice law firm in Manhattan, and practices primarily in real estate and real estate
litigation. Mr. Rubin is a long standing, active neutral arbitrator with the American
Arbitration Association and was a member of the Committee on Standards of Attorney
Conduct of the New York State Bar Association that drafted the New York Rules of
Professional Conduct enacted in 2009. Mr. Rubin is also a recipient of the City Bar
Justice Center’s 2010 Jeremy G. Epstein Award for pro bono service. Mr. Rubin is a
member of the Board of Safe Space NYC, LLC and Episcopal Social Services NYC and a
graduate of the University of Michigan Law School, cum laude.

Lawrence S. Spiegel

Mr. Spiegel is a partner at Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP. He has more
than two decades of experience advising individuals and corporations in complex
criminal and civil matters. He has represented corporations, their directors, officers and
employees in cases involving allegations of mail and wire fraud, securities fraud, tax
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fraud, government program and procurement fraud, bank fraud, consumer fraud and
money laundering. He represents clients in connection with federal and state grand jury
investigations, in inquiries by regulatory agencies, including the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and at trial. He has successfully defended many clients in high-profile
criminal investigations and indictments and on appeal. Mr. Spiegel has particular
experience advising clients in the context of concurrent criminal proceedings and civil
litigation. In addition, he has led many corporate internal investigations, and has advised
boards of directors and management of public and private companies on compliance
issues and programs, including those related to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Mr.
Spiegel serves as the Skadden's general counsel and co-chairs the firm's Ethics
Committee. He is also a member of the firm's Client Engagement and Risk Committees
and participates on the firm's Policy Committee (ex officio). Mr. Spiegel repeatedly has
been listed in the Best Lawyers in America. He frequently lectures and writes about
developments in criminal law and legal ethics. Mr. Spiegel is an adjunct professor and
guest lecturer in law schools. In 2009, he received the Burton Award for Legal
Achievement, which recognizes excellence in legal scholarship.

Edward M. Spiro

Mr. Spiro is a principal of Morvillo Abramowitz Grand Iason & Anello P.C. His practice
focuses primarily on complex commercial litigation. He is co-author of Civil Practice in
the Southern District of New York, 2d Ed. (Thomson Reuters 2018), a two-volume treatise
updated annually, and co-author of a regular New York Law Journal column on civil
practice in the Southern District of New York. Mr. Spiro has served as a member of the
House of Delegates of the New York State Bar Association and the Board of Directors of
the New York County Lawyers' Association. He is a former Chair of NYCLA's
Committee on Professional Discipline and the New York City Bar Association's
Committee on Professional Discipline. Mr. Spiro is a Fellow of the American Bar
Foundation and a member of the American Bar Association (Litigation and Criminal
Justice Sections), the New York State Bar Association (Commercial and Federal
Litigation Section), and the Federal Bar Council. Mr. Spiro also serves as a trustee of the
State University of New York and the Shaker Museum | Mount Lebanon. Mr. Spiro
received his J.D., cum laude, from Boston University School of Law and his B.A., cum
laude, from Colgate University.

William St. Louis

Mr. St. Louis is the Northeast Regional Director for the Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority (FINRA) and manages the sales practice examination and surveillance staff in
its New York City, Long Island, Boston, Philadelphia, and Woodbridge, New Jersey
offices. He also oversees FINRA’s national Membership Application Program. Prior to
assuming this and other senior roles in FINRA’s examination program, he was the
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Regional Enforcement Chief Counsel for FINRA’s North Region where he managed
Enforcement staff in FINRA’s New Jersey, Boston, and Philadelphia offices. He spent
several years in a variety of FINRA Enforcement roles in New York including service as
a Deputy Regional Chief Counsel. Mr. St. Louis earned a B.A. from Baruch College and
a law degree from the New York University of Law School. Previously, he was a law
clerk to a Justice of the New York State Supreme Court, New York County, Commercial
Division and worked in the Compliance Department of a regional broker-dealer. IHe has
served on the New York State CLE Board, on committees at the New York City Bar
Association, and on the board of a New York University Law School alumni association.

Hon. Joseph P. Sullivan
Judge Sullivan, formerly of counsel at the firm of Holland & Knight, LLP, graduated

from St. John’s University, LL.B, and the University of Virginia, School of Law, LL.M.
Prior to joining Holland & Knight, LLP, Judge Sullivan served as Associate Justice of the
Appellate Division, First Judicial Department — January 1, 1978 to February 15, 2000,
January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2007, and served as Presiding Justice of the Appellate
Division, First Judicial Department — February 16, 2000 to December 31, 2001. He also
served as Justice of the Supreme Court of the State of New York, First Judicial
Department, and Judge of the Civil Court of the City of New York. He was nominated
ten times by the Commission on Judicial Nomination for appointment to the Coutt of
Appeals, including twice for the office of Chief Judge.

Joe Tarver

Mr. Tarver is Vice President of Operations and Risk Management at Educational
Alliance, a non-profit agency that has been serving communities in Lower Manhattan for
over 130 years. Before joining Educational Alliance, he held a variety of positions in the
non-profit, public and private sectors. In New York City, these include Bend the Arc: A
Jewish Partnership for Justice where he was a Managing Director of Operations; the
Office of the New York City Comptroller where he worked with the Deputy Comptroller
of Public Affairs and managed the Division of Community and Government Relations;
New York States’ LGBT civil rights organization Empire State Pride Agenda where he
was Communications Director and later Managing Director of Operations; and Organic,
an internet professional services firm, where he was a Business Development Manager.
In Washington, DC, Mr. Tarver was Director of the Office of White House Liaison at the
U.S. Department of State, Assistant to the Deputy Director of the 1992 Clinton Gore
Presidential Transition, and a member of Senior Finance Staff on the 1992 Clinton Gore
Presidential Campaign. He worked at public affairs companies Cassidy & Associates and
Arnold & Porter Consulting, and was Legislative Assistant to Congressman Solomon P.
Ortiz in the U.S. House of Representatives. Mr. Tarver has a M. Philosophy from
University of Glasgow, Scotland, and a B. Architecture and BS Architectural Engineering
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from University of Texas at Austin.

Anne C. Vladeck

Ms. Vladeck is a partner at Vladeck Waldman Elias & Engelhard, P.C., a firm which
concentrates on representation of individuals in employment matters, including
discrimination, harassment, defamation, and litigation. She graduated from the
University of Pennsylvania (B.A., magna cum laude, 1975) and Columbia Law School
(1.D., 1978). She is an Adjunct Faculty member at Columbia Law School and previously
taught at Fordham and Cardozo Law Schools. She is a trustee of the Federal Bar Council,
and is on the Executive Committee of the Federal Bar Council Inn of Court
(President-Emeritus). Anne is a Fellow of the American College of Trial Lawyers, and is
on the Board of the Arthur Ashe Institute for Urban Health.

John L. Warden

Mr. Warden is of counsel to the firm of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP where he was a
Partner until 2009 and for many years a member of the firm’s Executive Committee and
head of its Litigation Group. He also serves as an arbitrator and mediator. He is a
graduate of Harvard College and University of Virginia Law School. He is a Life
Member of the American Law Institute and a Fellow of the American College of Trial
Lawyers.

Stephen L. Weiner

Prior to his appointment to the Attorney Grievance Committee, Mr. Weiner served the
First Department: Member: Appellate Division, First Department, Departmental
Disciplinary Committee, Policy Committee, 1989-1992, 1997 -, and Hearing Panel,
1986-1989; 1994-1997; Special Counsel to the Court/Disciplinary Committee, 1997 -.
Mr. Weiner’s service tot he Unified Court System includes: Member, State of New York,
Unified Court System, Office of Court Administration, The Advisory Committee on
Criminal Law and Procedure, 1994-2006. Mr. Weiner’s professional memberships and
service to the bar included: The Association of the Bar of the City of New York
(Member, Special Committee on Long Range Planning, 1993-1996; Subcommittee on
Probation of the Executive Committee, 1993-1996; Chair, Council on Criminal Justice,
1990-1993; Chair, Committee on Criminal Justice Operations and Budget, 1987-1990;
Member, Delegation to the New York State Bar Association House of Delegates, 1991-
1997; Member, Council on Criminal Justice, 1987-1990; Member, Committee on
Professional Responsibility, 1986-1987; Secretary: Committee on Criminal Advocacy,
1983-1986; Subcommittee on Sentencing Guidelines, Council on Criminal Justice, 1984-
1986; Member, Committee on Criminal Advocacy, 1983-1986; Member, Committee on
Criminal Courts, Law and Procedure, 1979-1983; New York State (Delegate, House of
Delegates, 1991-1997; Member, Executive Committee, Criminal Justice Section; Co-
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Chair, Committee to Improve the Effectiveness of the Criminal Justice System, 1987-;
Member: Commercial and Federal Litigation Section; Committee on Complex Litigation
and American (Member, Sections on: Litigation; Criminal Justice) Bar Associations: The
Legal Aid Society (Member, Board of Directors). Mr. Weiner’s public service includes:
Co-author: Technical Assistance Report: “An Evaluation of the TRAC-N Program of the
Assigned Counsel Plan, New York City - First Department,” October. Chairman and
Commissioner, New York State Commission on Investigation. Hughes Hubbard & Reed;
Assistant District Attorney, New York County. Law Secretary, Hon. L.eon B. Polsky,
Justice, Supreme Court, State of New York. Special Counsel to the Commission, New
York State Commission of Investigation; Hoffinger Friedland; Independent
Chairman/Commissioner, State Investigation Commission. Education” Columbia Law
School, cum laude,: Phi Delta Phi; Columbia College; Lafayette High School.

Toby R. Winer

Ms. Winer is a Financial Consultant, currently serving as Interim Chief Financial Officer
for the ACLU. Prior to consulting, Ms. Winer was the Executive Vice President and CFO
of Pace University. Ms. Winer received her M.B.A. from Columbia University and her
B.A. in Mathematics at Carnegie Mellon University. She is a Certified Public
Accountant.
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THE DISCIPLINARY PROCESS

Complaints, Investigations and Dismissals

The disciplinary process usually commences with the filing of a complaint against an
attorney, who is referred to as a “respondent.” Complaints typically come from clients,
but may also come from other attorneys and members of the public at large. The
Committee can also open sua sponte investigations based on information obtained from
judicial opinions, professional journals, referrals from the judiciary, newspaper accounts
and other sources. All disciplinary investigations and proceedings are confidential
pursuant to Judiciary Law 90(10) until the Court publically disciplines a respondent or
issues an unsealing order, upon “good cause being shown.”

Complaints are date-stamped, numbered and entered into the Committee’s database
system, which generates a printout of the respondent’s disciplinary history. They are then
screened by a staff attorney (screening attorney), who makes a preliminary
recommendation as to whether the Committee has jurisdiction, or whether a complaint
should be referred to another public agency or grievance committee. If it appears that
there is no substantial misconduct, but there has been a breakdown of communication
between the lawyer and the client, staff may refer the matter for mediation to a mediation
panel of the New York County Lawyers’ Association, the Association of the Bar of the
City of New York, or the Bronx County Bar Association.

The screening attorney may also recommend rejection of a complaint for any one of
several reasons, e.g., the complaint lacks merit, seeks legal advice, is an attempt to collect
a debt, or involves a fee dispute. In 2002, a mandatory mediation/arbitration program
was instituted to deal with fee disputes in civil and matrimonial matters, where the
amount in dispute is more than $1,000 and less than $50,000.

If the complaint involves the same substantial and material allegations that will be
decided in pending litigation, the Committee may defer the matter pending resolution of
the litigation, which may result in a judgment binding on the respondent. If the complaint
alleges serious misconduct by an attorney, such as conversion of client funds, the
Committee will not defer investigation.

If it appears from the complaint that a respondent may have engaged in serious
professional misconduct, the screening attorney brings the matter to the attention of the
Chief Attorney for direct assignment to a staff attorney. If the misconduct appears to be
very serious, e.g., conversion of escrow funds, investigation of the matter is expedited.
During the initial screening, a matter may also be directly assigned to a staff attorney
investigating other complaints involving the same respondent.
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The Chief Attorney approves all “first screening” closing recommendations made by the
screening attorney. If a matter is not closed following the initial screening, a paralegal
monitors the case and forwards the complaint to the respondent, who is required to file an
answer to the complaint. Thereafter, the paralegal may forward the answer to the
complainant for a reply. The paralegal then prepares a summary of the allegations and
defenses and refers the file to the initial screening attorney who performs a “second
screening” or further evaluation of the complaint, answer and reply. On second
screening, the screening attorney may recommend dismissal of the complaint for a variety
of reasons, or may recommend referral of the matter to a fee dispute arbitrator or to
mediation.

A matter that warrants additional investigation is forwarded by the screening attorney to
the Chief Attorney for review and assignment to a staff attorney. The assigned staff
attorney may obtain further documentation, using subpoenas when necessary, may
interview witnesses, including the complainant, and may question the respondent on the
record and under oath (examination under oath, deposition).

When the investigation is complete, the staff attorney makes a recommendation to the
Committee members for dismissal, or the imposition of a Letter of Advisement, an
Admonition (which is private discipline), or formal disciplinary proceedings against the
respondent which could result in public discipline. The staff attorney’s supervisor (a
Deputy Chief Attorney) and the Chief Attorney review all recommendations before they
are submitted to the Committee members. One of the volunteer Committees must
approve all post-investigation recommendations by a majority vote of those present at a
monthly meeting (a quorum of two-thirds of the members is required to conduct
business). When matters are dismissed on the merits, the closing letter to the complainant
indicates the complainant’s right to request reconsideration of the dismissal within 30
days.

Letters of Advisement [22 NYCRR 1240.2(i)]

The Committee issues a Letter of Advisement (Advisement) when an investigation
reveals that a respondent has engaged in conduct requiring comment that, under the facts
of the case, does not warrant the imposition of discipline. An Advisement is confidential
and does not in itself constitute discipline, but may be considered by the Committee or the
Court in determining the action to be taken or the discipline to be imposed upon a
subsequent finding of misconduct.

Letters of Admonition [22 NYCRR 1240.2(b)]

The Committee issues a Letter of Admonition (Admonition) when an investigation
reveals that a respondent has violated the New York Rules of Professional Conduct
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(Rules"), but not seriously enough to warrant a formal disciplinary proceeding, pursuant
to 22 NYCRR 1240.7(d)(2)(v). For example, an Admonition might be issued if a
respondent neglected only one legal matter and there were mitigating factors.

Although it is private and remains confidential, an Admonition is a finding of
professional misconduct and becomes a part of the respondent's permanent disciplinary
record. The Admonition may be considered in determining the action to be taken or the
discipline to be imposed upon a subsequent finding of misconduct against a respondent.
When the AGC determines to issue an Admonition, the respondent is afforded an
opportunity to make a brief personal appearance before the AGC to seek reconsideration.
After an Admonition is issued, the respondent may file a motion with the Court to vacate
it.

Applications to the Appellate Division
Public discipline requires an order of the Court. The AGC applies to the Court by motion

or petition which includes the record of the disciplinary proceedings and the Court action
requested. When the Court decides to impose a public sanction, it issues an order and a
written opinion which is almost always published in the New York Law Journal and is
otherwise public.* The order imposes a public sanction ranging from a public censure (no
suspension) or short suspension to disbarment (seven year bar from practicing). The
Court may also impose a private sanction, dismiss a matter or remand it back to the AGC
for further proceedings.

Formal Disciplinary Proceedings [22 NYCRR 1240.7(d)(2)(vi)]
The Committee members authorize a formal disciplinary proceeding when there is

probable cause that a respondent engaged in professional misconduct watranting the
imposition of public discipline, and that such discipline is appropriate to protect the
public, maintain the integrity and honor of the profession, or deter others from
committing similar misconduct.

A staff attorney’s recommendation that a formal petition be filed against a respondent
must be based on a demonstration of professional misconduct reviewed by the staff

' The Rules, which became effective April 1, 2009, were promulgated by a Joint Order of the
Appellate Divisions of the State of New York, dated December 30, 2008, and signed by the Presiding
Justice of each of the four departments. These Rules replaced the Lawyer’s Code of Professional
Responsibility, previously referred to as the “Disciplinary Rules.”

2 1If the Court imposes public discipline, the entire record is available for public inspection at the
First Department Committee on Character and Fitness located at 41 Madison Avenue, 26" Floor, New
York, New York 10010.
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attorney's supervisor, and approved by the Chief Attorney and the Committee members.
Upon approval, the Committee serves the respondent with a petition in which it requests
that the Court sustain the charges or, if there are factual or legal issues in dispute, to
appoint a Referee to hear the charges.” Within 20 days after service of the respondent’s
answer or, if applicable, a reply, the Chief Attorney’s Office must file with the Court a
statement of disputed and undisputed facts. Respondent has 20 days to respond. In the
alternative, within 30 days after service of the answer or, if applicable, a reply, the parties
may file a joint statement of disputed and undisputed facts or a statement that the
pleadings raise no issue of fact requiring a hearing, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.8(a)(2).
At any time after the filing of the petition, the parties may file a joint motion with the
Court requesting the imposition of “Discipline by Consent,” in order to avoid a hearing,
pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.8(a)(5). The motion must outline the agreed upon discipline
to be imposed, which may include monetary restitution authorized by Judiciary Law
§90(6-a), and the respondent’s affidavit conditionally admitting the acts of professional
misconduct.

Under the Court's rules, respondents have the right to appear, to be represented by
counsel, to cross-examine staff witnesses, and to present their own witnesses and exhibits.
The proceedings before the Referee are transcribed, and are conducted in two separate
parts, liability hearing and sanction (mitigation and aggravation evidence) hearing. A
Referee cannot proceed with a sanction hearing until he or she indicates that at least one
charge will be sustained. A Referee makes a finding on the charges shortly after the end
of the liability hearing. The Referee almost always asks the parties to submit memoranda
regarding liability and sanction. When the hearing, liability and sanction, is concluded,
the Referee must file with the Court a written Report and Recommendation containing
findings of facts, conclusions of law, charges sustained or dismissed, and
recommendation as to sanction (Referee’s Report). The Chief Attorney or the respondent
may file a motion with the Court to confirm or disaffirm the Referee’s Report. See
NYCRR 1240.8(b).

Collateral Estoppel
Rather than pursue formal charges, in an appropriate case, the Committee may file a

motion with the Court applying the doctrine of collateral estoppel, seeking an order
finding a lawyer guilty of violating the Rules solely on the basis of prior civil or criminal
court decisions without a further hearing, The Court may grant such a motion where the

3 Hearings before Referees are normally closed to the public, except in rare cases when a
respondent waives confidentiality. The Referees conduct hearings like trials, taking testimony and
receiving exhibits in accordance with the rules of evidence. The Referees have broad discretion as to
what is considered relevant and admissible evidence. A transcript is made of the entire proceeding.
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findings and issues in the prior action are identical to the disciplinary issues against a
respondent and where a respondent has had a full and fair opportunity to litigate in the
prior proceeding. In such cases, a hearing is held before a Referee on the issue of
sanction only, and the Committee or the respondent files a motion with the Court to
confirm or disaffirm the Referee’s Report.

Interim Suspensions [22 NYCRR 1240.9]

Under certain circumstances, the Court may suspend a respondent from practice on an
interim basis upon the Committee’s motion. Such a finding may be based upon the
respondent’s default in responding to a petition or subpoena to appear for a formal
interview, the respondent’s admissions under cath of professional misconduct, the
respondent’s failure to comply with a lawful demand of the Court or the Committee, the
respondent’s willful failure to pay money owed to a client (which debt is demonstrated by
an admission, judgment, or other clear and convincing evidence), or other uncontroverted
evidence of professional misconduct.

Resignations [22 NYCRR 1240.10]

A respondent may apply to resign from the practice of law, while an investigation or
proceeding is pending, by submitting to the Court an application admitting the nature of
the charges or the allegations under investigation. When the matter includes allegations
that the respondent has willfully misappropriated or misapplied money or property in the
practice of law, the respondent must consent to the entry of an order to make monetary
restitution pursuant to Judiciary Law 90(6-a). If the Court accepts the resignation, the
respondent is disbarred from practicing law for seven years pursuant to Judiciary Law
90(2).

Diversion [22 NYCRR 1240.11]

When in defense or as a mitigating factor in an investigation or formal disciplinary
charges, the respondent raises a claim of impairment based on alcohol or substance abuse,
or other mental or physical health issues, the Court, upon application of any person or on
its own motion, may stay the investigation or proceeding and direct the respondent to
complete an appropriate treatment and monitoring program approved by the Court. When
the Court considers diversion to a monitoring program, it takes into account the nature of
the alleged misconduct; whether the alleged misconduct occurred during a time period
when the respondent suffered from the claimed impairment; and, whether diverting the
respondent to a program is in the public interest.

Convictions [22 NYCRR 1240.12]

If an attorney is found guilty of any crime, the attorney must notify the grievance
committee having jurisdiction pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.7(a)2), within 30 days. The
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Committee must file a motion directly with the Court when an attorney has been
convicted of a felony or “serious crime.” An attorney who is convicted of a felony in
New York, or an analogous felony in another state or federal jurisdiction, ceases to be an
attorney by operation of law pursuant to Judiciary Law 90(4-a) and the Committee must
apply to the Court to have the attorney’s name stricken from the roll of attorneys in New
York. In cases where the Court, on the Committee’s motion, has determined that a lawyer
has been convicted of a crime which is not analogous to a New York felony, butis a
serious crime under New York’s Judiciary Law 90(4)(d), the Court assigns the case to a
Referee to hear the matter. Thereafter, the Committee or the respondent files a motion
with the Court to confirm or disaffirm the Referee’s Report. Serious crime cases result in
the same range of sanctions imposed in other formal disciplinary proceedings.

Reciprocal Discipline [22 NYCRR 1240.13]

The Committee is required to file an application with the Court if an attorney has been
found guilty of an ethical violation in another jurisdiction and "reciprocal discipline" is
warranted. An attorney that is subject to the jurisdiction of the First Department pursuant
to 22 NYCRR 1240.7(a)(2), is required to notify the Court and the Committee if
discipline is imposed on the attorney by a foreign jurisdiction. The Court may discipline
the attorney for the misconduct committed in the other jurisdiction unless it finds that the
procedure in the foreign jurisdiction deprived the respondent of due process of law, that
there was insufficient proof that the respondent committed the misconduct, or that the
imposition of discipline would be unjust.

Incapacity [22 NYCRR 1240.14]

If an attorney suffers from a mental disability or condition, alcohol or substance abuse, or
any other condition that renders him/her incapacitated from practicing law, the Committee
or the attorney may apply to the Court for a determination that the attorney is
incapacitated from practicing law. Applications by the attorney must include medical
proof demonstrating incapacity. In such cases, the Court may appoint a medical expert to
examine the attorney and render a report. When the Court finds that an attorney is
incapacitated, it enters an order immediately suspending the attorney from practicing and
may stay the pending disciplinary proceeding or investigation.

Upon application by the Committee that includes a judicial determination that an attorney
is in need of involuntary care or treatment in a facility for the mentally disabled, or is the
subject of an order of incapacity, retention, commitment or treatment pursuant to the
Mental Hygiene Law, the Court may enter an order immediately suspending the attorney
from the practice of law.
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Reinstatements [22 NYCRR 1240.16, 1240.17]

Upon motion of a respondent who has been disbarred or suspended, the Court may issue
an order reinstating such respondent upon a showing, by clear and convincing evidence,
that: the respondent has complied with the order of disbarment, suspension or the order
removing the respondent from the roll of attorneys; the respondent has complied with the
rules of the Court; the respondent has the requisite character and fitness to practice law;
and it would be in the public interest to reinstate the respondent to the practice of law. A
suspended respondent may apply for reinstatement after the expiration of the period of
suspension or as otherwise directed by the Court; except that respondents suspended for a
fixed term of six months or less, may apply for reinstatement 30 days prior to the
expiration of the term of suspension. A disbarred respondent may apply for reinstatement
to practice after the expiration of seven years from the entry of the order of disbarment.
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REPRESENTATIVE CASES

Although the Committee engages in multiple functions in a confidential manner that do
not result in public discipline, a significant portion of what the Committee does becomes
public when the Court acts on motions made by the Committee. In 2018, the Appellate
Division, First Judicial Department, publicly disciplined 67 lawyers as follows: 22
disbarments, 4 resignations by attorneys facing charges (equivalent to disbarment), 32
suspensions and 9 public censures.

Interim Suspensions
The Court’s rules provide that an attorney may be suspended from the practice of law

pending consideration of charges against the attorney for: (1) a default in responding to
pending charges of professional misconduct or failure to comply with lawful demands
made in connection with an investigation; (2) a substantial admission under oath that the
attorney has committed an act of professional misconduct; (3) other uncontested evidence
of professional misconduct; or (4 ) willful failure to pay money owed to a client
evidenced by a judgment or other clear and convincing evidence.

The most serious misconduct that the Committee deals with involves the theft or
misappropriation of money belonging to clients or held as a fiduciary. The Court has
repeatedly stated that the intentional conversion of money that an attorney holds as a
fiduciary or for a client requires disbarment, except when there are exceptional mitigating
circumstances which are rarely found. Because such misconduct immediately threatens
the public interest, the Committee’s staff attorneys will seek an immediate suspension of
an attorney if there is sufficient evidence to justify the motion. In addition, the
Committee’s staff will seek the suspension of an attorney who fails to cooperate in
answering a complaint or does not comply with lawful demands for information or
records. In 2018, the Court suspended 12 attorneys on an interim basis pending
resolution of the charges against them in the following cases: Matter of Richard P. Savitt,
161 AD3d 109; Matter of William S. Winters, 160 AD3d 168; Matter of Steven R.
Donziger, 163 AD3d 123; Matter of Mark S. Pomerantz, 166 AD3d 26; Matter of
Mathew H. Goldsmith, 159 A.D.3d 188; Matter Dale J. Morgado, 167 A.D.3d 66; Matter
of Richard D. Borzouye, 161 AD3d 73; Matter of Marshall S. Vayer, 160 AD3d 232;
Matter of Joram J. Aris, 162 AD3d 75; Matter of Ilya Novofastovsiy 164 A.D.3d 64;
Matter of Herbert G. Lindenbaum, 165 AD3d 53; Matter of Jessica E. Matic, 165 AD3d
45,
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Disbarments

In 2018, the First Department disbarred seven attorneys (one for a serious crime, three
following a petition for reciprocal discipline, and three motions to disbar): Matter of
Anthony J. Zappin, 160 AD3d 1, Matter of Michael Frants 160 A.D.3d 171; Matter of
Mirta Desir, 163 A.D.3d 52; Matter of Thomas A. Blumenthal, 165 AD3d 85; Matter of
Brian D. Thomas 162 A.D.3d 1; Matter of Eric P. Gonchar, 166 A.D.3d 91; Matter of
Steven S. Herzberg, 163 AD3d 220.

Further, the First Department, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(b), disbarred 6 interimly
suspended attorneys who failed to apply in writing to the Committee or Court to request a
hearing, or reinstatement, within six months of the interim suspension: Matter of Stephan
L. Rosenbaum, 161 AD3d 91; Matter of Scott A. Spencer, 161 AD3d 44; Matter of
Evgeny A. Freidman, 162 AD3d 14; Matter of Mark S. Pomerantz, 166 AD3d 26; Matter
of Nytaino Romulus 155 A.D.3d 14; Matter Dale J. Morgado, 167 A.D.3d 66.

Finally, the First Department granted 9 motions to strike the names of attorneys convicted
of felonies: Matter of Edmund C. Duffy, 159 AD3d 98; Matter of Keila D. Ravelo, 163
AD3d 98; Matter of Keith D. Weliner, 163 AD3d 154; Matter of Joel Zweig, 163 AD 3d
168; Matter of Pincus D. Carlebach, 163 AD3d 192; Matter of Donna M. Conroy, 167
AD3d 44; Matter of Samuel Racer, 165 AD3d 137, Matter of Darren L. Ofsink, 166
AD3d 97, Matter of Donald B. Cohen, 164 A.D.3d 207.

Disciplinary Resignations

The Court permitted an attorney to resign from the bar during an investigation by the
Committee, or after the filing of charges, if the attorney submitted an affidavit pursuant to
22 NYCRR 1240.10, acknowledging that the attorney knows the nature of potential
charges and cannot defend against them. A resignation pending investigation or
disciplinary proceeding is the equivalent of disbarment. In 2018, the First Department
accepted resignations under 22 NYCRR 1240.10 from four attorneys and ordered their
names stricken from the roll of attorneys: Matter of Harvey K. Newkirk, 159 AD3d 184;
Matter of Edward N. Kiss, 163 AD3d 35; Matter of Edward M. Char, 163 AD3d 131;
Matter of John O. Shasanmi, 167 AD3d 85.

Suspensions as Discipline
A suspension can be ordered by the Court as discipline and also to protect the public. The

Court imposes suspension for conviction of “serious crimes,” as defined in the Judiciary
Law 90(4)(d), for reciprocal discipline and for misconduct. In 2018, the Court suspended
19 attorneys for periods ranging from three months to five years: Matter of Arlene S.
Kayatt, 159 AD3d 101; Matter of Michael Joffe, 158 AD3d 11; Matter of Gary Michael
Walters, 159 A.D.3d 88; Matter of Jeffrey Michael Blum 160 A.D.3d 69; Matter of
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Jessica M. McHale, 162 A.D.3d 117; Matter of Esmeralda Machado, 161 AD3d 142;
Matter of Christopher W. McHallam, 160 AD3d 89; Matter of Steven A. Colarossi, 161
A.D.3d 100; Matter of Stanley L. Cohen, 159 AD3d 113; Matter of Victor G. Sison, 161
AD3d 24; Matter of David Charles Berman, 162 A.D.3d 21; Matter of Aaron D.
Frishberg, 163 AD3d 103; Maiter of Gino L. Giorgini, 166 AD3d 43; Matter of Thomas
A. Farinella, 163 AD3d 27; Matter of Kenneth Linn 163 A.D.3d 120; Matter of Jonathon
R. Steinberg, 63 A.D.3d 634; Matter of Don A. Carlos Jr. 166 A.D.3d 55; Matter of
William J. Alford 166 A.D.3d 80, Matter of Joshua A. Messian, 166 AD3d 153.

Suspensions for Medical Disability

The Court’s rules provide that an attorney may be suspended if judicially declared
incompetent or if the Court concludes that the attorney is incapacitated from continuing to
practice law. Pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.14(b), any pending disciplinary proceedings
against the attorney shall be held in abeyance after the Court makes a determination of the
attorney’s incapacity to continue the practice of law. In 2018, the Court suspended one
attorney on these grounds: Matter of Marcus K. Nagel, 161 AD3d 95.

Public Censures

The least severe form of public discipline that the Court may impose is a censure (see 22
NYCRR 1240.2[c]). In 2018, the First Department issued public censures in nine cases:
Matter of Leslie R. Jones Thomas, 159 A.D.3d 35; Matter of Jeffrey A. Leighton 158
A.D.3d 23; Matter of Alexandra E. Mora, 163 AD3d; Matter of Charles C. Simpkins, 163
AD3d 195; Matter of Nicholas R. Doria, 165 AD3d 33; Matter of Kevin J. McNeely, 163
A.D.3d 227; Matter of John H. Jankoff, 165 A.D.3d 58; Matter of David E. Schorr, 166
AD3d 115; Matter of Jay A. Goldberg, 166 AD2d 58.

Reinstatements

Section 90 of the Judiciary Law and Court Rule 22 NYCRR 603.14 (rescinded October 1,
2016), and 22 NYCRR 1240.16 (effective October 1, 2016), permit attorneys to apply for
reinstatement to the practice of law after a period of suspension, or seven years after
disbarment. Attorneys who are suspended for six months or less, may file an application
for reinstatement pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.16(d). An attorney who has been
suspended for a period of more than six months may apply to the Court for reinstatement
upon the expiration of the period of suspension. An attorney who has been disbarred, or
stricken from the roll of attorneys, may not apply for reinstatement until the expiration of
seven years from the effective date of disbarment. In 2018, the Court granted 12 petitions
for reinstatement and denied six.
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Dishonored Check Investigations

Staff Attorney Kevin P. Culley handles the screening of all complaints which the
Committee receives pursuant to the dishonored check reporting rules under 22 NYCRR
1300. Mr, Culley coordinates all necessary contacts with banking institutions and the
Lawyers’ Fund for Client Protection in processing the dishonored check matters. Mr.
Culley also supervises staff investigators in obtaining required bookkeeping records and
recommends disposition of matters or further investigation and action by staff attorneys.
He has spoken at Continuing Legal Education courses on the subject of proper escrow
account management.

Immigration Complaints
Staff Attorney Jun Hwa Lee handles the initial screening of all immigration matters. Ms.

Lee also coordinates our efforts with many other agencies and prosecutors who target
immigration fraud. Further, Ms. Lee supervises the Committee’s use of immigration
Special Counsel approved by the Court to assist the Committee. Ms. Lee participates in a
task force aimed at Protecting Immigrants of New York (PINK), and speaks before
various groups, including community organizations and federal judges interested, or
involved, in immigration matters.
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PUBLIC DISCIPLINE CASES

Several of the cases prosecuted by staff attorneys that became a matter of public
discipline in 2018 are reviewed below:

Matter of John H. Jankoff; 165 A.D.3d 58 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court publicly censured Jankoff for counseling a client to engage in illegal and
fraudulent conduct, misrepresenting himself in his professional experience, and
conspiring to circumvent federal regulations for client’s own financial interests, in
violation of Rules 1.2(d) and 8.4(h). Jankoff had been featured in the related 60 Minutes
episode entitled “T.owering the Bar” documenting lawyers that advised, a West African
National on Money Laundering. (Staff Attorney Sinan Aydiner)

Matter of Nytaino Romulus 155 A.D.3d 14 (1% Dept 2018)

The Court suspended Romulus pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9 (a)(1) and (3), because he
failed to respond to the Committee’s numerous letters and voice messages requesting that
he address the allegations in the first complaint, failed to appear for an examination under
oath pursuant to a judicial subpoena, failed to respond to the Committee’s motion for
interim suspension, and willfully non-complied with the Committee’s investigation. (Staff
Attorney Sinan Aydiner)

Matter of Jonathon R. Steinberg, 63 A.D.3d 634 (1* Dept 2018)

On January 10, 2019, The Court suspended Steinberg for one-year, as a result, of failure
to pay duly imposed sanctions, commenced a fraudulent conveyance action that lacked
merit, and sent an ex-parte email to the judge overseeing a matter in which the attorney
represented the defendant and attacked the judge’s ruling, in violation of Rules 3.3(f)(2),
3.5(a)(2), 8.4(d)(h), (22 NYCRR 1200.0). (Staff Attorney Sinan Aydiner)

Matter of Victor G. Sison, 161 AD3d 24 (1st Dept 2018)

In a November 16, 2016 order, the New Jersey Supreme Court found that Sison violated
New Jersey Rules of Professional Conduct 8.4(b) and 8.4(d) based on his improper
adjudication and “ticket-fixing” while acting as a Municipal Court Judge in Jersey City in
concert with his colleagues between 2004 and 2007. Accordingly, the New Jersey
Supreme Court ordered that Sison be suspended from the practice of law for three
months, effective December 16, 2016. Our Court thereafter reciprocally suspended Sison
for three months, finding that the New Jersey sanction was in general accord with New
York precedent involving arguably similar misconduct. (Staff Attorney Sean A.
Brandveen)
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Moatter of Jay A. Goldberg, 166 AD2d 58 (1st Dept 2018)

Beginning in 1997, then New York State Assemblyman Sheldon Silver referred to
Goldberg, his friend for more than 60 years, two clients, major real estate developers,
Glenwood Management (Glenwood) and The Witkoff Group (Witkoff), to handle their
tax certiorari matters. Goldberg agreed to share with Silver a percentage of the legal fees
his firm received (25% of Glenwood’s fees, and 15% of Witkoff’s fees) but did not give
the clients written notice that Silver was assuming joint responsibility for their
representation and was receiving a share of the legal fees. Both clients were made aware
of the arrangement December of 2011. While Glenwood signed a revised retainer
agreement formally consenting to the arrangement, Witkoff did not, but signed a side
letter acknowledging its awareness of the arrangement and continued to use Goldberg’s
services. After formal charges were filed, Goldberg and the Committee filed a joint
motion requesting that Goldberg be publicly censured on consent based on a joint
stipulation in which Goldberg admitted to engaging in the above-described misconduct
and thereby violating DR 1-102(A)(7); DR 2-107(A){1) and (2) of the Code of
Professional Responsibility (for conduct prior to April 1, 2009) and rule 1.5(g) (1) and (2)
and rule 8.4(h) of the Rules of Professional Conduct (for conduct thereafter). The Court,
citing mitigating factors and finding that the misconduct was limited to violations of the
fee sharing rules and lacked aggravation, granted the parties’ joint motion and publicly
censured Goldberg. (Staff Attorney Kevin P. Culley)

Matter of David E. Schorr, 166 AD3d 115 (1% Dept 2018)

The Court granted a joint motion for discipline by consent wherein Schorr admitted that
he violated Rule 8.4(d), conduct prejudicial to the administration of justice. Schorr’s
misconduct stemmed from a court conference, during his own divorce, wherein he
covertly made an unauthorized recording through the use of his cell phone. More
specifically, on October 9, 2013, during a court conference before Supreme Court Justice
Deborah Kaplan, Schorr used his iPhone to make a video recording but captured no
images since his iPhone was inside his inner jacket pocket. In April 2015, the Committee
issued Schorr a private admonition for violating Rule 3.3(f)(3) and Rule 8.4(d). By a
May 6, 2015 letter, Schorr rejected the admonition and requested formal proceedings be
commenced. But Schorr then went to federal court to hamper such proceedings. The
federal litigation generated findings by the Second Circuit that our Court found binding
on Schorr and establishing of his liability under Rule 8.4(d). At the resultant sanction
hearing, Schorr finally admitted his misconduct and offered a range of mitigation: Schorr
had no disciplinary history; he had never been sanctioned by any court for his misconduct;
he had enjoyed limited experience in the practice of law when the misconduct took place;
he went on to represent several domestic relations clients pro bono; he cooperated with
the Committee’s investigation; and he displayed professional, courteous and respectful
behavior towards the Committee’s staff counsel and the Referee. Schorr was publicly
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censured. (Staff Attorney Kevin M. Doyle)

Matter of Anthony J. Zappin, 160 AD3d 1 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court issued an order, pursuant to the doctrine of collateral estoppel based upon the
February 29, 2016 order and decision issued in Zappin’s divorce and custody action,
(Zappin v. Comfort, Sup. Ct. NY County, Cooper, J., Index No.: 301568/14). The
Supreme Court’s decision and order granted Zappin’s wife sole custody of their then two-
year old son. Zappin’s misconduct consisted of his repeatedly perpetrating acts of
domestic violence against his wife; falsely testifying at a custody trial; knowingly
introducing falsified evidence during the proceedings in the form of altered text
messages; presenting misleading testimony through his expert witnesses; demonstrating
disrespect for the court and counsel, by inter alia, flouting the judicial directives of three
judges; filing a disciplinary complaint against a court-appointed psychiatric expert
witness; sending his wife, an attorney, text messages, threatening her with the loss of her
license to practice law and professional ruin; baselessly accusing his father-in-law of
being a child sexual abuser who could harm Zappin’s son; and engaging in frivolous and
abusive litigation against his wife, her parents, and her attorneys. By an unpublished
order of October 17, 2016, this Court granted the Committee’s motion, finding Zappin
guilty of professional misconduct and referred the matter to a referee to recommend the
appropriate sanction. On December 19, 2016, the sanction hearing was held before a
Referee, who recommended that Zappin be disbarred. The Committee moved to affirm
the Referee’s report and recommendation of disbarment. Zappin opposed the motion and
filed three motions seeking affirmative relief. The Court denied each of Zappin’s
motions for affirmative relief. On March 8, 2018, the Court disbarred Zappin, striking his
name from the roll of attorneys. (Staff Attorney Kevin M. Doyle)

Matter of Scott A. Spencer, 161 AD3d 44 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court immediately suspended Spencer on February 21, 2017, pursuant to 22 NYCRR
§1240.9(a)(1) and (3). Spencer’s suspension stemmed from his failure to cooperate with
the Committee’s investigation into a complaint filed by Spencer’s former wife that
alleged that he had failed to comply with directives of a final judgment of divorce issued
by a Florida circuit court. Spencer refused to appear for further examination under oath,
as directed by judicial subpoena, and he also failed to provide a supplemental submission,
to which Spencer had agreed. Spencer did not interpose a response to the motion. On
April 17, 2018, the Court disbarred Spencer, pursuant to 22 NYCRR §1240.9(b), on the
grounds that he had neither responded to nor appeared for further investigatory or
disciplinary proceedings within six months from the date he was suspended from the
practice of law. (Staff Attorney Kevin M. Doyle)
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Matter of John Q. Shasanmi, 167 AD3d 85 (1% Dept 2018)

By order dated November 15, 2018, the Court accepted Shasanmi’s resignation, pursuant
to 22 NYCRR §1240.10, effective nunc pro tunc to August 15, 2018. In Shasanmi’s
affidavit, he acknowledged that he was the subject of an investigation by the Committee
involving allegations of professional misconduct regarding his failure to open an attorney
trust account; his failure to maintain bookkeeping records; his use of a personal bank
account as a depository for his clients’ escrow funds and, above all, his use of those
funds, which exceeded $600,000, for his personal purposes. Shasanmi disclosed that in
July 2018, he was indicted in Supreme Court, New York County, on two counts of grand
larceny in the second degree, a Class C felony and one count of criminal possession of a
forged instrument in the third degree, a class A misdemeanor. The Committee urged the
Court’s acceptance of Shasanmi’s resignation. Pursuant to Judiciary Law §90(6-a),
Shasanmi was directed to make restitution to Second Providence Church in the amount of
$601,874.99 and to reimburse the Lawyers’ Fund for Client Protection for any award(s)
made to Second Providence Church in connection with its loss caused by his misconduct.
(Staff Attorney Kevin M. Doyle)

Matter of Michael Joffe, 158 AD3d 11 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court suspended Joffe, on January 4, 2018, for the period of two years, pursuant to
Rules 1.1(a), 1.3(a),(b), 1.16(e), 8.4 (c), and 8.4(d). In 2016, the Committee brought 10
charges against Joffe. The charges stemmed from Joffe’s neglect of two immigration
matters, his false statements, and his submission of forged documents to the Committee
during its investigation. Eight of the ten charges were sustained after hearing. Joffe was
found guilty of professional misconduct based upon his incompetence, his neglect of two
immigration matters, his false statements, and his submission of forged documents to the
Committee. Sanction after hearing took into account the vulnerability of Joffe’s two
immigration clients; his prior disciplinary history; and his lack of genuine remorse. It
took into account as well Joffe’s partial refunds to his aggrieved clients; his
representation that the unpaid balances would be remitted in the near future; and Joffe’s
voluntary payment of child support. (Staff Attorney Kevin M. Doyle)

Matter of Gino L. Giorgini, 166 AD3d 43 (1% Dept 2018)

In this matter, which arose from a disciplinary matter transferred from the Second
Department, the Court suspended Giorgini on September 25, 2018, for a period of three
months, effective October 25, 2018. Giorgini was suspended for violating former N.Y.
Code Prof. Resp. DR 7-106(c)(6), (22 NYCRR 200.37 (c)(6)), 1-102 (A)(5) (22 NYCRR
1200.2(a)(5)0, and 1-102(A)7) (22 NYCRR 1200.3(a)(7) because the written comments
he made to two different Second Department trial courts exceeded the bounds of zealous
advocacy and were derogatory, undignified, and inexcusable. Giorgini subjected one
court to scornful sarcasm and belittlement, which resulted in that court’s warning
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Giorgini away from such conduct. Giorgini went on, however, to accuse another court of
blatant political bias and corruption. The Referee recommended dismissal of three of the
six charges, the three which arose from Giorgini’s first episode abusing the judiciary.
The Court sustained all the charges, upholding the Committee’s prosecutorial discretion
in the wake of the inter-departmental transfer. More, the Court deemed suspension rather
than the recommended censure fitting, given Giorgini’s disregard of the warning he had
enjoyed and his justifying his misconduct instead of displaying genuine remorse. (Staff
Attorney Kevin M. Doyle)

Matter of Joram J. Aris, 162 AD3d 75 (1st Dept 2018)

Aris was under investigation for his handling of three estates of deceased clients where
he or his wife were named executors, including one where the main beneficiary was a
not-for-profit organization that he controlled. Although he provided some
documentation at the Committee’s request and appeared at an examination under oath, he
failed to comply with the Committee’s subpoena and produce any recent bank account
records or tax filings for the three estates or the not-for-profit. The Committee
independently subpoenaed the bank records for one estate, where he had been appointed
a temporary administrator to marshal the estate’s assets. The records revealed that Aris
had misappropriated $510,000 of its funds for personal purposes unrelated to the estate,
including paying his childrens’ college tuition, his own credit card bills, his
psychotherapist’s fees and his own state and federal tax bills. On May 10, 2018, Aris
was suspended for failure to comply with lawful demands of the Committee and for other
uncontroverted evidence of professional misconduct. Aris was subsequently disbarred.
(Staff Attorney Jeremy S. Garber)

Mouatter of Harvey K. Newkirk, 159 AD3d 184 (1st Dept 2018)

The Court accepted the resignation of Newlkirk, who had been convicted in the Southern
District of New York of the federal felony of wire fraud. The Court had previously
determined that the felony of which he was convicted constituted a “serious crime.”
Matter of Newkirk, 141 AD3d 178 (1st Dept 2016). The conviction arose from
misrepresentations Newkirk made on behalf of a client to finance the client’s acquisition
of Maxim Magazine. Newkirk falsely represented to two lenders that his client’s father,
a wealthy businessman, was providing collateral for the loans. As a result of his and his
client’s fraudulent conduct, one lender lost $3.1 million. In accepting his resignation, the
Court directed Newkirk to make restitution to the lender in the amount of $3.1 million
less any amounts already repaid by himself, his co-defendant or a third party, and to
reimburse the Lawyers’ Fund for Client Protection for any amounts that it may have paid
out with regard to this loss. (Special Trial Attorney Jeremy S. Garber)
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Matter of Donald B. Cohen, 164 A.D.3d 207 (1st Dept 2018)

On August 30, 2018, the Court automatically disbarred Cohen, nunc pro tunc to January
16, 2018 pursuant to Judiciary Law §90(4)b), based upon his felony conviction.
Specifically, Cohen was convicted, upon his plea of guilty, in Supreme Court, New York
County, on January 15, 2018, of two counts of offering a false instrument for filing in the
first degree, in violation of Penal Law §175.35(1). Cohen admitted to filing his 2015
New York State tax return, on which he failed to report at least $147,300 in taxable
personal income, which he had withdrawn from his IOLA account and used for
household expenses. Cohen also filed a 2014 New York State tax return for his domestic
partner on which he omitted taxable income that she had received. On April 4, 2018,
Cohen was sentenced to one year incarceration on each count to run concurrently.
{(Special Trial Attorney Jeremy S. Garber)

Matter of Alexandra E. Mora, 163 AD3d 1 (1% Dept 2018)

Mora was publicly censured, as reciprocal discipline, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.13 on
the basis of a deferred suspension imposed by the Supreme Court of Louisiana, Mora
admitted to mishandling her trust account by commingling personal funds with client
funds and failing to keep adequate records for her trust account, which in one case led to
a dishonored check. The conduct for which Mora was disciplined in Louisiana constitutes
misconduct in New York, in violation of Rule 1.15(a) of the New York Rules of
Professional Conduct. As the Court noted, as a general rule, it gives great weight to the
sanction imposed by the jurisdiction in which the misconduct occurred. New York does
not have a sanction equivalent to deferred suspension, but censure is in accord with New
York precedent for similar misconduct. (Deputy Chief Attorney Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Stephan L. Rosenbaum, 161 AD3d 91 (1* Dept 2018)

By order dated November 20, 2013, as part of a mass suspension for failure to file
registration statements and pay registration fees, the Court suspended Rosenbaum.
Rosenbaum continued to practice, and on March 28, 2017, Rosenbaum’s suspension was
extended, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(2), for violating the mass suspension order,
and on the basis of misconduct immediately threatening the public interest involving his
failure to return a $100,000 loan he took from an elderly client. The Court tempered its
sanction in part because Rosenbaum asserted that he would comply with the attorney
registration. On April 17, 2018, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(b), the Court disbarred
Rosenbaum for failing to respond or appear for further investigatory or disciplinary
proceedings within six months from the date of the order of suspension. Rosenbaum
never complied with the registration requirements gnd failed to make restitution to the
Lawyers’ Fund for Client Protection which granted a $100,000 award to Rosenbaum’s
client, reimbursing her for Rosenbaum’s dishonest conduct. (Deputy Chief Attorney
Naomi F. Goldstein)
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Matter of Evgeny A. Freidman, 162 AD3d 14 (1* Dept 2018)

On May 2018, the Court disbarred Freidman, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(b), since he
was interimly suspended on July 13, 2017, under 22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(3), and failed to
respond or appear for further investigatory or disciplinary proceedings within six months
from the date of the order of suspension. The misconduct that led to Freidman’s interim
suspension [152 AD3d 89], stemumed from his failure to cooperate with the Committee’s
sua sponte investigation into dishonored checks drawn against his IOLA account. Just
days after the Court issued its order on May 1, 2018, Freidman pled guilty to a tax felony,
on the basis of which he would have been disbarred by operation of law. (Deputy Chief
Attorney Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Steven R. Donziger, 163 AD3d 123 (1* Dept 2018)

Premised on the doctrine of collateral estoppel, by decision and order dated July 10, 2018,
the Court found Donziger guilty of professional misconduct, in violation of DR1-
102(AX(4), DR1-102(A)(5), DR7-102(A)(6), DR7-105, DR7-110(A) and DR7-110(B) of
the Lawyer’s Code of Professional Responsibility (Code) and Rules 3.4(a)(5), 3.5(a)(1),
8.4(a) and 8.4(d) of the Rules of Professional Conduct based on the findings adverse to
Donziger by Judge Lewis A. Kaplan of the United States District Court for the Southern
District of New York, in Chevron Corp. V. Donziger, 974 F. Supp. 2d 362 (S.D.N.Y.
2015). Judge Kaplan found that Donziger had engaged in coercion, fraud, bribery and
other misconduct in connection with obtaining a judgment in Ecuador. On the basis of
the uncontroverted evidence of misconduct, the Court suspended Donziger on July 10,
2018, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(5) and ordered a sanction hearing. (Deputy
Chief Attorney Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Edward N. Kiss, 163 AD3d 35 (1* Dept 2018)

On May 15, 2018, the Court accepted Kiss’ resignation. The Court had previously
interimly suspended Kiss on May 11, 2017 [152 AD3d 129], pursuant to 22 NYCRR
§1240.9(a)(5), based on his conversion and/or misappropriation of at least $27,500 of
client funds. The Committee moved to disbar Kiss pursuant to 22 NYCRR §1240.9(b), in
February 2018 on the grounds of his failure to appear for further investigatory or
disciplinary proceedings. In response to the Committee’s motion, Kiss submitted an
affidavit of resignation, which was accepted by the Court, nunc pro tunc, to March 29,
2018. (Deputy Chief Attorney Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Marcus K. Nagel, 161 AD3d 95 (1* Dept 2018)

By letter dated October 30, 2017, New York County Supreme Court Justice Kathryn E.
Freed advised the Committee that based upon Nagel’s appearance before her in a pending
eviction action, she questioned Nagel’s fitness and capacity to practice law. A
psychiatrist evaluated Nagel and reported that Nagel had developed a delusion that his co-
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op had hired people to sabotage him at work and to harass and assault him at home in
order to force him out of his apartment. The doctor found that Nagle lacked insight into
his psychiatric disorder and could not represent himself in housing or any other court. On
the basis of his incapacity by reason of mental infirmity, on April 17, 2018, the Court
immediately suspended Nagel, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.14(b). (Deputy Chief
Attorney Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Joshua A. Messian, 166 AD3d 153 (1¥ Dept 2018)

The Court granted the joint motion for discipline by consent and suspended Messian from
the practice of law for five years, nunc pro tunc to October 31, 2017. Messian’s
misconduct, involved the intentional conversion of significant funds over a four-month
period in 2015, at a time when he was suffering from narcotics addiction. In mitigation,
Messian accepted responsibility; had an unblemished disciplinary history; fully
cooperated with the Committee; made full restitution to the affected clients and expressed
remorse. Messian voluntarily sough inpatient treatment at a residential drug and alcohol
facility for his narcotics addiction, subsequently sought outpatient treatment and
continues to attend meetings at least five times a week at Narcotics Anonymous. Messian
has remained drug-free since May 2016, and since May 2017 has retained full-time (non-
legal) employment. (Deputy Chief Attorney Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Keith D. Wellner, 163 AD3d 154 (1* Dept 2018)

By order dated July 19, 2018,0n the basis of his felony plea and pursuant to Judiciary Law
§90(4)(a) and 22 NYCRR §1240.12(c)(1) the Court struck Wellner’s name from he roll of
attorneys. Wellner entered a plea in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of New York to six felony counts stemming from his participation in a conspiracy
to commit fraud on investors in Weston Capital Asset Management, a registered
investment adviser. Wellner was the general counsel, chief operating officer, and chief
compliance officer for Weston. (Deputy Chief Attorney Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Pincus D. Carlebach, 163 AD3d 192 (1¥ Dept 2018)

By order dated August 9, 2018, the Court entered an order striking Carlebach’s name
from the roll of attorneys in New York, pursuant to Judiciary Law §90(4)(a) and (b) and
22 NYCRR §1240.12(¢c)(1), nunc pro tunc to May 3, 2018. On May 3, 2018, Carlebach
entered a plea of guilty in Supreme Court, New York County, to a scheme to defraud, a
class E Felony, and grand larceny in the second degree, a class C felony. Carlebach
admitted that he engaged in an ongoing course of conduct with the intent to defraud and
to obtain property with a value in excess of $1,000.00. Specifically, Carlebach, while
representing clients in bankruptcy matters, engaged in a scheme by which he embezzled
$1.83 million in escrow funds from his IOLA account and used those funds for personal
expenses. Carlebach also admitted that he committed second-degree larceny by stealing
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over $50,000 of property from SH575 Holdings LL.C. On March 28, 2018, Carlebach
also pleaded guilty in the Southern District of New York to embezzling $30,000 from a
client’s bankruptcy estate. Previously, by order dated November 21, 2917, Carlebach was
immediately suspended from the practice of law based on his conversion and/or

misappropriation of funds in connection with a bankruptcy related real estate transaction
[156 AD3d 44]. (Deputy Chief Attorney Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Richard D. Borzouye, 161 AD3d 73 (1% Dept 2018)

By motion dated on October 4, 2017, the Committee sought the immediate suspension of
Borzouye from the practice of law, due his failure to appear for an examination under
oath pursuant to a subpoena. On January 2, 2018, the Court granted the Committee’s
motion and suspended Borzouye until further order of the Court. By motion dated
October 29, 2018, the Committee sought an order to disbar Borzouye for his failure to
respond or appear and participate in either the investigatory and disciplinary proceedings
within six months, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(b). On January 15, 2019, the Court
disbarred Borzouye. (Staff Attorney Jun H. Lee)

Matter of Thomas A. Farinella, 163 AD3d 27 (1* Dept 2018)

In July 2010 the Committee filed 45 Charges against Farinella, which included allegations
he engaged in a pattern of misconduct, including neglect of legal matters, failure to carry
out contracts of employment, failure to return client files as requested, failure to return
unearned fees, and failure to cooperate with the Committee’s investigation. The referee
sustained 30 Charges. Prior to the sanction hearing, on November 17, 2011 the Court
suspended Farinella on the basis that he was suffering from a mental infirmity, pursuant
to 22 NYCRR 603.16 (c) (1). On October 10, 2013 the Court reinstated Farinella to the
practice of law under the condition that respondent be monitored for three years by the
New York State Bar Association’s LAP Program. On February 2015, the Committee filed
37 supplemental charges against Farinella alleging, in part, that he intentionally converted
client funds. The Referee sustained 22 charges of the supplemental charges, including the
charge of intentional conversion. The Court found that Farinella presented exceptional
mitigation warranting a lesser sanction. The Court suspended Farinella for two years,
effective nunc pro tunc, to the date of his disability suspension. (Staff Attorney Jun H.
Lee)

Matter of Brian D. Thomas 162 A.D.3d 1 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court disbarred the attorney pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.15, because, after his
license was suspended, he engaged in the unauthorized practice of law, even though he
was aware of his suspension. (Deputy Chief Attorney Vitaly Lipkansky)
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Matter of Ilya Novofastovsky 164 A.D.3d 64 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court suspended the attorney pursuant to NYCRR 1240.9(a)(3) because he failed to
cooperate with the Committee’s investigation. While Novofastovsky answered three out
of the four complaints filed against him, he did not submit his IOLA account ledger as
requested by the Committee and did not answer the fourth complaint. Although
Novofastovsky was warned of the consequences of his noncompliance, he persisted and
defaulted on the motion to suspend. {(Deputy Chief Attorney Vitaly Lipkansky)

Matter of Don A. Carlos Jr. 166 A.D.3d 55 (1st Dept 2018)

The Court suspended Carlos for two and a half years, pursuant to 22 NYCRR
1240.8(a)(5) (Discipline by Consent), because he negligently misappropriated client
funds, commingled personal funds with client and/or third- party funds, used his escrow
account to shield funds from collection by tax authorities, failed to maintain bookkeeping
records, provided false deposition testimony and false written statements to the
Committee, and he failed to pay income taxes (Deputy Chief Attorney Vitaly Lipkansky)

Matter of Aaron D. Frishberg, 163 AD3d 103 (1* Dept 2018)

By order dated June 28, 2018, this Court suspended Frishberg for a period of six months.
In 2016, the Committee brought six charges against Frishberg. In January 2017,
Frishberg stipulated to four of the six charges, admitting his failure to comply with three
deadlines for perfecting an appeal. Specifically, Frishberg failed to provide competent
representation in violation of RPC 1.1(a); failed to act with reasonable diligence and
promptness in representing a client in violation of RPC 1.3(a); neglected a legal matter
entrusted to him in violation of RPC 1.3(b); and engaged in other conduct that adversely
reflected on his fitness as a lawyer in violation of RPC 8.4(h). The Referee sustained the
four admitted charges and the two disputed charges. In mitigation, Frishberg averred that
he had a lasting medical condition, that his psychiatrist of 40 years retired and his mother
passed away. Frishberg must enroll in and successfully complete the Lawyer Assistance
Program (LLAP) for one year. (Staff Attorney Norma I. Melendez)

Matter of Richard P. Savitt, 161 AD3d 109 (1* Dept 2018)

The Committee charged respondent with three violations of the Rules of Professional
Conduct in connection with his appearance at trial in Davler Media Group, LLC v. Astro
Gallery of Gems, when the judge in that matter denied respondent’s demand that she
recuse herself from the case. The charges alleged that respondent engaged in undignified
and discourteous conduct and conduct that is prejudicial to the administration of justice.
After respondent failed to respond to the charges, the Committee moved for an order: 1)
finding respondent in default in responding to the petition of charges and deeming all the
allegations contained therein admitted; 2) immediately suspending respondent based upon
his default; and 3) referring the matter to a Referee for the issue of sanction only.
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Respondent opposed the Committee’s motion on the grounds that he was never personally
served with the petition and cross-moved to dismiss the petition on the grounds that he
had a meritorious defense to the charges and that his time to respond to the petition of
charges had not started to run because the Committee failed to file the affidavit of service
with the Court. The Court held that respondent failed to rebut the Committee’s evidence
of proper service, that jurisdiction was properly attained over respondent where the
petition of charges was delivered to “Connie” at respondent’s actual place of business and
then mailed the next day to his office, and any defects in the affidavit of service or the
failure to timely file the affidavit could be properly cured by deeming it filed nunc pro
tunc. In addition, the Court found that respondent was given notice of the petition of
charges via the Committee’s e-mails to him sent pursuant to his instructions. Respondent
was found in default and the charges were deemed admitted. As a result, respondent was
interimly suspended and a hearing on the issue of sanctions was directed to be held.
(Staff Attorney Elisabeth A. Palladino)

Matter of Ariene S. Kayatt, 159 AD3d 101 (1* Dept 2018)

The Committee brought seven charges against respondent alleging violations of Rule
1.15(d)(1XD), (ii), and (viii) for failure to keep required bookkeeping records; Rule 8.4 (c)
(conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or misrepresentation; Rule 8.4(d) (conduct
prejudicial to the administration of justice; and Rule 8.4 stemming from, among other
things, respondent’s misuse of two escrow accounts as business/personal accounts which
she allegedly used to shield personal funds from tax authorities. The Committee also
charged respondent with misuse of a third party’s personal bank accounts to shield her
funds from tax authorities. The Referee found that the record established that for most of
her 25 year career that respondent improperly used her escrow accounts as a dual
depository for client/third party funds and her business/personal funds in violation of Rule
1.5(b)(1) and sustained charge one. The Referee did not sustain any other charge and
recommended that respondent be suspended for four months. The Hearing Panel
affirmed the Referee’s liability findings except it also recommended sustaining charge
two, finding that respondent’s bank statements alone did not comply with Rule 1.15(d)(1)
and sustained charge seven to cover both charge one and two. The Hearing Panel
recommended that respondent be suspended for two months. The Court found that the
record supported sustaining charges one, two, three and seven regarding respondent’s
admitted improper use of her escrow account as a dual depository for client/third party
funds and her business/personal funds in clear violation of Rule 1.15(b)(1). In addition,
the Court found that the record supports the finding that respondent failed to maintain
required bookkeeping records for the two escrow accounts at issue. As to charge four,
which alleged that in using her escrow accounts to shield business/personal funds from
the IRS, respondent also violated Rule 8.4 (conduct prejudicial to the administration of
justice), the Court found that this charge was properly dismissed because Rule 8.4(d) is
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more appropriately applied to misconduct which occurs within the context of litigation.
As to charges five and six, which pertained to respondent’s alleged misuse of a third
party’s account to defraud the IRS, the Court found that these charges were properly
dismissed because: 1) they were not escrow accounts; 2) there was no evidence that the
funds withdrawn from these accounts were actually subject to a lien or levied against; 3)
caselaw relied upon by Committee involved only escrow accounts, not third party
accounts, and the Committee did not present any caselaw in which it was found that the
manner in which the third party accounts were used constituted professional misconduct;
and 4) the Referee and Hearing Panel credited respondent’s and the third party’s
testimony that the primary intent was to enable respondent to survive financially and not
to defraud the IRS. Based on the Court’s finding, the sustaining charges one, two, three,
and seven, the Court suspended respondent for two years. (Staff Attorney Elisabeth A.
Palladino)

Matter of Thomas A. Blumenthal, 165 AD3d 85 (1* Dept 2018)

Pursuant to the doctrine of reciprocal discipline, under 22 NYCRR 1240.13, the Court
disbarred Blumenthal from the practice of law, which was predicated upon the discipline
imposed by the New Jersey Supreme Court. The New Jersey Supreme Court disbarred
Blumenthal for violating New Jersey RPC 1.15(a) for knowingly misappropriating funds
designated for one real estate transaction to pay for disbursements in another, as well as
RPC 1.8(a), 8.4(c), and 8.4(d), for improper business transactions, and engaging in
conduct that involved dishonesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation, and that was
prejudicial to the administration of justice. (Staff Attorney Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of Steven S. Herzberg, 163 AD3d 220 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court immediately disbarred Herzberg pursuant to Judiciary Law §§90(2), 486,
without further proceedings based on overwhelming evidence that he continued to operate
his law firm afier he was suspended by the Court. On July 18, 2017, the Court suspended
Herzberg pursuant to 22 NYCRR §1240.9(a)(3), based on his failure to cooperate with
the Committee’s investigation of eight dishonored checks drawn against his law firm’s
IOLA account. Herzberg willfully engaged in the unauthorized practice of law, took on
new legal matters, held himself out as an attorney in good standing, continued to use his
escrow accounts, and failed to notify the court, and other parties’ counsel within 10 days
of his suspension. (Staff Attorney Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of William S. Winters, 160 AD3d 168 (1* Dept 2018)

Pursuant to the doctrine of reciprocal discipline, under 22 NYCRR 1240.13, the Court
suspended Winters, predicated upon the discipline imposed by the Supreme Court of New
Jersey. Winters’ suspension stemmed from an order dated April 30, 2015, wherein the
New Jersey Supreme Court temporarily suspended him for his refusal to cooperate with
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an investigation by the New Jersey Office of Attorney Ethics (OAE), concerning his
handling of attorney trust account funds. In November 20135, the OAE filed a formal
disciplinary complaint alleging that Winters’ failure to produce requested information
constituted a continuing failure to cooperate with its investigation of his alleged knowing
misappropriation of client funds, in violation of New Jersey Rule of Professional Conduct
8.1(b). By order dated April 6, 2017, the New Jersey Supreme Court adopted the decision
of the Disciplinary Review Board, censuring Winters for violating New Jersey RPC
8.1(b), and continued his temporary suspension. (Staff Attorney Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of Marshall S. Vayer, 160 AD3d 232 (1* Dept 2018)

By order of October 21, 2010, this Court suspended Vayer from the practice of law, as
part of a mass suspension proceeding for failing to file attorney registration statements
and pay biennial registration fees, in violation of Judiciary Law §468-a. The Committee
then moved to immediately disbar Vayer, pursuant to Judiciary Law §§90(s) and 486,
without further proceedings, for his engaging in the unauthorized practice of law in
violation of the Court’s October 21, 2010 suspension order. In his answer, Vayer
acknowledged that he continued to practice law after his suspension but claimed it was
not intentional because he was unaware of his suspension. Vayer explained that he failed
to renew his registration and stopped meeting his CLE requirement around 2001 because
he was engaged in major litigation and was confronted with stressors in both his
professional and personal life. Vayer was contrite and upon learning of his suspension,
he suspended his law practice, took steps to pay back his registration fees and became
current with his CLE obligations. Although Vayer was willfully ignorant of his
registration responsibilities, this is not a case where any clients, or opponents, were
harmed by his conduct. By order dated March 29, 2018, the Court denied the
Committee’s motion to disbar but continued Vayer’s suspension, pursuant to 22 NYCRR
1240.9(a)(5). The Committee has since filed formal charges against Vayer for engaging
in the unauthorized practice of law. (Staff Attorney Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of Jessica E. Matic, 165 AD3d 45 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court interimly suspended Matic from the practice of law, pursuant to 22 NYCRR
1240.9(a)(1) and (3), for her failure to appear pursuant to subpoena and to comply with
lawful demands of the Committee. Matic’s suspension stemmed from a complaint the
Committee received in November 2017 from a non-profit organization that assists
borrowers who have become victims of mortgage rescue scams. The complaint was filed
on behalf of an alleged victim against Matic., During 2017 and 2018, the Committee sent
Matic numerous letters to both her business and residential address. Delivery of these
letters was confirmed, but no answer was submitted by Matic. On June 14, 2018, the
Committee personally served Matic with a subpoena issued by this Court, directing her to
appear on June 28, 2018, to give testimony in the investigation. Matic failed to appear at
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the Committee’s offices or contact the Committee regarding her default, (Staff Attorney
Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of Edward M. Char, 163 AD3d 131 (1* Dept 2018)

By order entered on July 18, 2007, the Court granted the Committee’s motion, seeking
Char’s interim suspension from the practice of law based on his failure to cooperate with
the Committee’s investigation of three complaints, including one involving eight
dishonored checks, totaling more than $56,000, drawn against Char’s law firm’s IOLA
account. Thereafter, Char sought an order, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.10, approving
his resignation and disbarring him from the practice of law. Char acknowledged that the
allegations against him included his willful misappropriation of client funds that he could
not successfully defend himself against the allegations. On July 18, 2018, the Court
accepted Char’s resignation from the practice of law, disbarring him, and striking his
name from the roll of attorneys, effective nun pro tunc to April 16, 2018. (Staff Attorney
Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of Christopher W. McHallam, 160 AD3d 89 (1¥ Dept 2018)

Pursuant to the doctrine of reciprocal discipline, under 22 NYCRR 1240.13, the Court
suspended McHallam for a period of three months, which was predicated upon discipline
imposed by the Supreme Judicial Court of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The
Massachusetts disciplinary proceedings arose from McHallam’s representation of a
plaintiff in a defamation action which was filed in 2006 and dismissed on summary
judgment in 2010. McHallam led his client to believe that the case had been reinstated,
that he was working to obtain a monetary award or settlement, and that he had secured an
award of over $1 million for his client. McHallam’s client learned in 2015, that there had
been no further litigation and no settlement had been obtained. By order of July 21, 2017,
the Massachusetts court accepted McHallam’s resignation and struck his name from the
roll of attorneys, effective August 20, 2017. The Committee filed a motion for reciprocal
discipline because his misconduct in Massachusetts would violate New York Rules of
Professional Conduct 1.4(a)(1)(iii), 1.4(a)(3), 8.4(c), and 8.4(h). The Committee
submitted, however, that a three month suspension was more analogous to the discipline
imposed here as the client did not suffer any harm. (Staff Attorney Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of Michael Frants 160 A.D.3d 171 (1st Dept 2018)

On April 2, 2009, this Court suspended Frants for failure to file attorney registration
statements and pay biennial registration fees. On September 17, 2009, The Minnesota
Supreme Court disbarred Frants, because he, inter alia, intentionally misappropriated
client funds in excess of $10,000. He failed to promptly notify the Committee of his
discipline in Minnesota. Frants’ misconduct in Minnesota violated the following
provisions of the former Code of Professional Responsibility which were in effect at the
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time of his misconduct: DR-102 (a)(4) (conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or
misrepresentation); (a)(5) (conduct that is prejudicial to the administration of justice); DR
9-102 (a) (prohibition against misappropriation off client funds and commingling); (b)
(obligation to maintain client and/or third party funds in an attorney special account),
(c)(3) (obligation to maintain complete records of client or third party funds and to render
appropriate accounts concerning such); (c)(4) (failure to promptly pay or deliver to client
or third party person as requested funds or property which they are entitled to receive); (d)
(failure to maintain required bookkeeping records). The Court granted the Committee’s
motion for reciprocal discipline, and disbarred Michael Frants. (Staff Attorney Lance
Philadelphia)

Matter of Jeffrey Michael Blum 160 A.D.3d 69 (1st Dept 2018)

The Court suspended Blum for six-months, pursuant to reciprocal discipline in connection
with misconduct committed in Kentucky. The Kentucky Supreme Court found that
respondent threatened the opposing counsel in an ongoing civil matter, engaged in
conduct intended to disrupt a tribunal, and without basis, had repeatedly impugned the
personal integrity of the administrative hearing officer who oversaw his client’s matter.
The Kentucky Supreme Court also accepted the findings of the Federal District Court and
Circuit Court of Appeals, through which Blum unsuccessfully sought to challenge the
adverse administrative determination against his client, that Blum engaged in repeated
disruptive conduct, in defiance of multiple warnings. This Court found that Blum’s
conduct in Kentucky violated the following provisions of the former code of Professional
Responsibility, which were in effect at the time of his misconduct: (1) DR 1-102(A)(5)
prohibiting conduct prejudicial to the administration of justice; (2) DR 7-102(A)(1)
prohibiting filing a suit, asserting a position, conducting a defense, delaying a trial, or
taking other action on behalf of a client when the lawyer knows, or when it is obvious,
that such action would serve merely to harass or maliciously injure another; (3) DR 7-
106(C)(6) prohibiting undignified or discourteous conduct that is degrading to a tribunal;
and (4) DR 8-102(B) prohibiting making knowingly false accusations against a judge or
other adjudicatory officer. (Staff Attorney Lance Philadelphia)

Matter of Eric P. Gonchar, 166 A.D.3d 91 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court disbarred Gonchar for violating a suspension order by engaging in the
unauthorized practice of law, and continuing to hold himself out as a licensed New York
attorney, and giving substantive legal advice on real estate matters to attorneys at the law
firm where he was employed. (Staff Attorney Orlando Reyes)

Matter of Jessica M. McHale, 162 AD.3d 117 (1* Dept 2018)
The Court suspended the attorney for three months, as reciprocal discipline for a five-year
disbarment imposed by the Bankruptcy Court for the Western District of North Carolina,
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for the attorney’s neglect of a debtor’s bankruptcy case and other misconduct. (Staff
Attorney Orlando Reyes)

Matter of Leslie R. Jones Thomas, 159 AD.3d 35 (1% Dept 2018)
The Court publicly censured the attorney for failing to finalize a client’s divorce action
for 16 years. (Staff Attorney Orlando Reyes)

Matter Dale J. Morgado, 167 A.D.3d 66 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court initially suspended respondent on an interim basis pending further disciplinary
proceedings based on his failure to cooperate with the Committee’s investigation of a
complaint. Because respondent failed to respond to nor appear for investigatory or
disciplinary proceedings within six months from the date of respondent’s suspension,
pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9, the Court disbarred respondent. (Staff Attorney Yvette
Rosario)

Matter of Steven A. Colarossi, 161 A.D.3d 100 (1* Dept 2018)

Pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.13, the Court imposed reciprocal discipline on respondent
for his misconduct in Massachusetts based on his connection with the probate of his late
father’s estate. Respondent was suspended for six months in New York. (Staff Attorney
Yvette Rosario)

Matter of Mirta Desir, 163 A.D.3d 52 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court disbarred respondent pursuant to the reciprocal discipline provision of 22
NYCRR 1240.13 based on misconduct in Florida for neglect, failure to return an
unearned fee, as well as intentional conversion of client funds. (Staff Attorney Yvette
Rosario)

Matter of Kevin J. McNeely, 163 A.D.3d 227 (1 Dept 2018)

Pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.13, respondent was censured based upon his consent and
the findings of the District of Columbia Court of Appeals which imposed a 30 day
suspension, stayed, and three years of probation for misconduct arising from a patent
representation. The misconduct for which respondent was disciplined constituted
misconduct in New York and public censure was warranted, even though New York had
no sanction equivalent to that imposed by the District of Columbia. (Staff Attorney
Yvette Rosario)

Matter of Mathew H. Goldsmith, 159 A.D.3d 188 (1* Dept 2018)

Pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(1), (3), and (5), the Court suspended respondent on an
interim basis pending further disciplinary proceedings based on his failure to comply with
the Committee’s investigation of two complaints, and for converting/misappropriating
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and commingling client funds. Specifically, respondent deposited checks he received on
behalf of his client into his own business/operating account and improperly commingled,
converted and misappropriated those funds. (Staff Attorney Yvette A. Rosario)

Matter of Jeffrey A. Leighton 158 A.D.3d 23 (1% Dept 2018)

Mr. Leighton was an experienced attorney and a partner at his firm. The Committee
charged Leighton with violating rules 8.4 (¢) and (h) because he fabricated and falsely
entered 94.8 hours into his law firm’s billing records between March 2012 and September
2013. Leighton did not financially benefit, nor were the clients billed for the fabricated
hours because Leighton removed the false entries before the bills were sent to the clients.
Leighton testified that he only wanted to give his colleagues and his firm the impression
that he was busier than he actually was. In mitigation, Leighton had never been the
subject of a disciplinary investigation in his 34 years of practice, he fully cooperated with
the Committee, expressed genuine remorse and embarrassment, and lost his partnership at
his firm. The parties moved pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.8(a)(5), for the imposition of a
public censure. The Court granted the motion and censured Jeffrey Leighton. (Staff
Attorney Remi E. Shea)

Matter of Kenneth Linn, 163 A.D.3d 120 (1* Dept 2018)

The Committee charged criminal defense attorney Kenneth Linn with violating rules
1.2(d) (scope of representation), 1.7 (a)(2) (conflict of interest), and 8.4 (b) and (h)
(conduct that adversely reflects) when he purchased heroin multiple times from a client,
while representing him on a drug possession and sale matter. This was not the first time
Linn’s drug problems led to sanctions. In 1987, Linn was suspended for a third time,
because he failed to appear at 40 court appearances in one month. Linn’s misconduct here
appeared to be a lapse after a long period of sobriety and when he was unable to refill his
medical prescription in pain killers to reduce extreme pain. The parties moved pursuant to
22 NYCRR 1240.8(a)(5) for discipline on consent. In light of the significant factors in
mitigation, Linn’s advanced age, cooperation with the Committee, acceptance of
responsibility, expressions of remorse, and the fact that he voluntarily met with the
Lawyer Assistance Program in September 2017 and tested negative for heroin, the
Committee and Linn agreed that a one-year suspension was appropriate. By order dated
June 28, 2018, The Court suspended Kenneth Linn for one-year and directed him to
participate in the Lawyer Assistance Program for one-year, with both to run concurrently.
(Staff Attorney Remi E. Shea)

Matter of William J. Alford 166 A.D.3d 80 (1* Dept 2018)

The Committee charged Alford with engaging in misconduct involving failure to file a
Notice of Claim for a client who wanted to sue the City of New York, and falsely
informed the client and the Committee that he had; failing to respond to a client’s letters
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regarding money orders Alford was to send him and failing to respond to the Committee’s
letters in violation of rules 1.3(b) (diligence), 1.4(c) (communication), 8.4(c), (d), and (h)
(conduct that adversely reflects). In 2013, Mr. Alford was admonished for failing to
promptly refund an unearned fee; and in 2015 he was admonished for failing to file a
notice of appeal in a criminal matter. The Committee and Alford stipulated to the
following factors in mitigation: that he traveled to and from Atlanta to care for his dying
sister at the time the Committee was investigating the complaint by the second client; he
was a solo practitioner; and, his conduct was limited in scope. The parties moved
pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.8 (a) (5), for the imposition of a three-month suspension.
The Court granted the motion and suspended Alford. (Staff Attorney Remi E. Shea)

Matter of Gary Michael Walters, 159 A.D.3d 88 (1% Dept 2018)

The Court reciprocally suspended Walters for 2 ¥ years, effective nunc pro tunc to
January 18, 2017, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.13, based on discipline imposed by the
Supreme Court of California. Respondent was found to have practiced law while
administratively suspended, maintained personal funds in his trust account and paid
business and personal expenses from that account, and failed to cooperate with
disciplinary authorities. Walters received notice of charges against him in California and
chose to enter stipulations admitting the charges and consenting to discipline. (Staff
Attorney Denice Szekely)

Matter of David Charles Berman, 162 A.D.3d 21(1% Dept 2018)

The Court reciprocally suspended Berman for two years, nunc pro tunc to May 14, 2017,
pursuant to NYCRR 1240.13, based upon discipline imposed by the Supreme Court of
New Jersey, for failing to keep client reasonably informed, withdrawing from
representation improperly, and failing to cooperate with disciplinary authorities. Berman
was provided with sufficient notice and an opportunity to be heard in the New Jersey
proceeding. Further, misconduct disciplined in New Jersey constituted misconduct in this
state in violation of New York Rules of Professional Conduct. (Staff Attorney Denice
Szekely)

Matter of Charles C. Simpkins, 163 AD3d 195 (1% Dept 2018)

The Court granted a joint motion for discipline by consent wherein Simpkins admitted to
violating Rules of Professional Conduct. Specifically, Simpkins admitted to the unlawful
use of a credit/debit card to make purchases and that he made false statements thereafter
regarding the incident. In light of significant factors in mitigation, including Simpkins’
cooperation; his admitted conduct and acceptance of responsibility; Simpkins’ successful
completion and ongoing involvement in the Lawyer’s Assistance Program; his
expressions of remorse, and his willingness to make restitution, Simpkins was publicly
censured. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)
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Matter of Nicholas R. Doria, 165 AD3d 33 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court previously ordered Doria suspended from the practice of law based on his
failure to register with OCA and pay biennial registration fees, in violation of Judiciary
Law §468-a. Doria remains suspended. The Court publicly censured Doria, pursuant to
Judiciary Law §90(2) and 22 NYCRR 1240.13, predicated upon Doria’s similar discipline
by the Supreme Court of New Jersey. Specifically, Doria charged an excessive fee and
failed to return a significant portion of the fixed fee. The conduct for which Doria was
disciplined in New Jersey constituted a parallel disciplinary violation in New York, and
Doria was publicly censured. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Mark S. Pomerantz, 166 AD3d 26 (1% Dept 2018)

Pomerantz was interimly suspended from the practice of law as he failed to cooperate
with the Committee’s investigation. Pomerantz had been in willful contempt for failing
to comply with court orders in connection with his financial obligations in a matrimonial
matter with his former wife, which evinced a shocking disregard for the judicial system.
[158 AD3d 26] The Court subsequently disbarred Pomerantz pursuant to 22 NYCRR
1240.9(b), for failing to respond or appear for further investigatory or disciplinary
proceedings within six months of the date of the order of his suspension. (Deputy Chief
Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Herbert G. Lindenbaum, 165 AD3d 53 (1¥ Dept 2018)

Lindenbaum was interimly suspended, pursuant to Judiciary Law §90(4)(d), based upon
his conviction of a “serious crime.” Specifically, Lindenbaum pleaded guilty in the
United States District Court, for the Southern District of New York, to evasion of
payment of income taxes, in violation of 26 USC §7201, a felony under federal law.
Lindenbaum admitted that from 1999 through 2013, he attempted to evade paying taxes
by sending business checks directly to his wife’s account, paying personal expenses from
his business accounts and clients’ accounts, paying family members for work they did not
perform, cashing checks made out to his business accounts, and closing and opening
certain business accounts to avoid IRS levies. Lindenbaum was sentenced, in accordance
with his plea agreement, to time served and placed on supervised release for three years,
with six months of home confinement. Lindenbaum was ordered to pay restitution of
$3,392,211 and an assessment of $100. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Esmeralda Machado, 161 AD3d 142 (1¥ Dept 2018)

Pursuant to the doctrine of reciprocal discipline, under 22 NYCRR 1240.13, the Court
suspended Machado from the practice of law because she engaged in the unauthorized
practice of law in New Jersey and was permanently barred from appearing pro hac vice in
New Jersey. The misconduct for which Machado was disciplined in New Jersey
constitutes misconduct in New York under New York Professional Conduct Rules
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3.3(a)(1), 5.5(a), and 8.4(c), (d). Machado was suspended for two years because of the
serious nature of her deliberate pattern of misconduct, her lack of remorse, her showing
an utter lack of integrity by misusing a law school friend to twice sponsor her for pro hac
vice admission in New Jersey and her continuing to practice law in New Jersey after her
pro hac vice status was automatically terminated. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond
Vallejo)

Matter of Stanley L. Cohen, 159 AD3d 113 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court granted the joint motion for discipline by consent suspending Cohen from the
practice of law for 2 ¥ years, effective as of the date of his interim suspension, April 14,
2015. Specifically, Cohen pleaded guilty to federal tax offenses, 26 USC §§7212(a) and
7203, obstructing and impeding the IRS and failure to file income tax returns, which are
defined as “serious crimes” and which conduct violated New York Rule of Professional
Conduct 8.4, The mitigating factors included, inter alia, Cohen’s candor about his
conduct; acceptance of responsibility; sincere remorse and contrition; his filing of all
outstanding federal and state tax returns for 2005 through 2010 covering all the years he
had failed to file tax returns; his payment of outstanding taxes totaling $118,000 for tax
years 2006 through 2009; his representation of many indigent clients; his pro bono work
in international human rights matters and his previously unblemished record. (Deputy
Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Edmund C. Duffy, 159 AD3d 98 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court disbarred Duffy based on his federal felony conviction. Specifically, Duffy
pleaded guilty in the United States District Court, for the Southern District of New York,
to possession of child pornography, in violation of 18 USC §§ 2252(a)(5)}(B), (b)(2) and
2. Duffy’s conviction was predicated on his use of a filing sharing program whereby,
over a period of approximately 5 years, he downloaded images of child pornography to
his personal computer. Duffy was sentenced to a term of probation of 5 years and ordered
to pay $9,000 in restitution, forfeit $256,000, perform 1,800 hours of community service,
participate in a computer internet monitoring program and register as a sex offender.
(Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Keila D. Ravelo, 163 AD3d 98 (1° Dept 2018)

The Court automatically disbarred Ravelo, pursuant to Judiciary Law §90(4)b), based
upon her federal felony conviction. Specifically, Ravelo was convicted, upon her plea of
guilty, in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, to conspiracy to
commit wire fraud, in violation of 18 USC §§ 1343 and 1349 and tax evasion, in violation
of 26 USC §7201. Ravelo was sentenced to five years imprisonment, with three years of
supervised release. Ravelo’s conviction stemmed from her involvement in a conspiracy
with her husband by which she defrauded two law firms (where she was employed as a
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partner) along with a client of approximately $7.8 million by submitting false invoices for
litigation support services purportedly rendered by two entities formed by Ravelo and her
husband. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Joel Zweig, 163 AD 3d 168 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court automatically disbarred Zweig pursuant to Judiciary Law §90(4)(a) and (b),
and 22 NYCRR 1240.12(c)(1), based upon his federal felony conviction. Specifically,
Zweig pleaded guilty, in the United States Court, for the Northern District of California,
to obstruction of justice and perjury, under 18 USC §§ 1503 and 1623(a), respectively.
Zweig admitted that he knowingly created a false and fraudulent declaration and affidavit
submitted in federal court to support false damages claims and to obstruct the court’s
investigation. Zweig’s conviction stemmed from his role in creating and transmitting
false court documents for his friend, whose company, a pet retail store chain, had
commenced a federal breach of contract action against a pet food manufacturer. Zweig
created a phony 2008 New York City commercial property lease and a phony 2011
assignment of the lease to his friend’s company, with forged signatures and notarizations.
Respondent was sentenced to concurrent prison terms of 56 months, a three-year term of
supervised release and was ordered to pay restitution in the amount of $167,713.48.
{Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Donna M. Conroy, 167 AD3d 44 (1¥ Dept 2018)

The Court disbarred Conroy pursuant to Judiciary Law §90(4)(a) and (b) and 22 NYCRR
1240.12(c)(1), based upon her federal felony conviction. Specifically, Conroy was
convicted upon her plea of guilty, in the United States District Court, for the District of
New Jersey, of making false entries to deceive the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) and First State Bank (FSB) in violation of 18 USC §1005, and conspiracy to
deceive the FDIC and FSB and to influence the FDIC in violation of USC §§ 371, 1005,
and 1007. Conroy’s conviction stemmed from her participation in and concealment of a
fraudulent infusion of capital into FSB (following a determination by regulators that the
bank was insufficiently capitalized), which involved lying to the FDIC and others about
the fraudulent capital infusion and subsequent loans to cover it up. Conroy admitted that
she and her co-conspirators attempted to conceal the misuse of FSB’s own funds to
generate the $7 million capital infusion. Conroy consented to the entry of a forfeiture
money judgment against her for $37,500, which she acknowledged represented the
proceeds of her criminal conduct in violation of 18 USC §1005. (Deputy Chief Attorney
Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Samuel Racer, 165 AD3d 137 (1¥ Dept 2018)

The Court disbarred Racer pursuant to Judiciary Law §90(4)(a) and (b) and 22 NYCRR
1240.12(c)(1), effective nunc pro tunc to May 9, 2012, the date of Racer’s conviction.
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Specifically, Racer was convicted, upon his plea of guilty, of one count of grand larceny
in the third degree, a class D felony, in violation of Penal Law § 155.35. Racer admitted
that between January and February 2010, he stole property from two individuals and that
the value of the property exceeded $50,000. Respondent was sentenced to 20 days of
community service, five years’ probation, and ordered to pay $40,425 in restitution to the
Lawyers’ Fund for Client Protection. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Darren L. Ofsink, 166 AD3d 97 (1* Dept 2018)

The Court disbarred Ofsink, pursuant to Judiciary Law §90(4)(a) and (b) and 22 NYCRR
1240.12(c)(1), effective nun pro tunc to October 18, 2017. Specifically, Ofsink was
convicted, upon his plea of guilty, in the United States District Court, for the Eastern
District of New York, of conspiracy to commit securities fraud, in violation of 18 USC §
371 and 15 USC §§ 78i(b) and 78ff. Ofsink’s conviction stemmed from his participation
in a conspiracy to defraud investors by manipulating and inflating the stock price of a
publicly traded company. Ofsink admitted to defrauding more than 10 victims and that he
personally profited from his crime by $292,409.11, which amount represented the
proceeds of the stock that he sold. Ofsink consented to an entry of a forfeiture money
judgment. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)
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Appendix B: Office of the Chief Attorney: Attorneys
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Appendix C: Office of the Chief Attorney: Administrative Staff
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Reginald E. Thomas, Investigator/Paralegal
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Appendix D:
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINE ACTIVITIES
PERIOD COVERED: 2018

FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT - FIRST DEPARTMENT

MATTERS PROCESSED@

A. Matters Pending at Start of Period

B. New Matters During Period

C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period

D. Total Matters To Be Processed During Period (A+B+C)
E. Total Matters Disposed Of During Period

F. Matters Pending at End of Period

MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE

A. Rejected As Failing to State a Complaint

B. Referred To Other Disciplinary Committees

C. Referred To Other Agencies

D. Dismissed or Withdrawn

E. Dismissed Through Mediation

F. Letter of Advisement

G. Letter of Admonition

H. Reprimand (after hearing)

[. Referred to Appellate Division (Disciplinary Proceeding)
Total Disposed of During Period ("Matters" same as I, E. above)

CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS

A, Cases Pending at Start of Period
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

B. Cases Received at Start of Period
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

C. Total to be Processed During Period
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1245
2933
56
4234
(2884)
1350
Cases@® Matters
1306 1463
362 370
156 171
530 552
2 2
72 77
59 64
0 0
147 185
2634 2884
57
39
18
425
103
322
482
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ATTORNEY DISCIPLINE ACTIVITIES (2018)

D. Cases Closed

Disbarred

Disciplinary Resignations
Suspended @

Censured

Privately Censured @
Remanded to Grievance Committee
Discontinued

Dismissed

9. Reinstatements Granted @

10. Reinstatements Denied

11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations
12, All Other Dispositions

13. Total Closed

e Aol o &

E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

55-176 Rev. 01/03

426

(426)

56

35

21

Matters include: complaints, inquiries (excluding telephone inquiries) and sua sponte

investigations.

Cases refers to the number of respondent attorneys. Since some attorneys are the subject of

multiple complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.
Includes: (19) definite, (12) interim, and (1) indefinite suspensions.

Reported as "Private Reprimand" until September 2016, now "Admonition by Court Order."
Includes (176) reinstatements following suspensions for failing to register (468-a default),

(12) disciplinary reinstatement and (0) non-disciplinary reinstatements.
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Appendix E: Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Attorney Grievance Committee Budget
Fiscal Year April, 2018 - March, 2019

Personal Service Total:

Non-Personal Service:

Office Supplies

EDP Supplies

Postage Only

Legal Reference & Subscriptions
Miscellaneous Supplies and Materials
Travel General

Rentals of Equipment

Repairs of Equipment

Shipping

Printing General

Telephones

Building and Property Services
Records Management Services
Professional Services - Expert Witnesses
Other Court Appointed Services
Other General Services

Professional Services Per Diem Court Reporters
Transcript Costs General

Computer Assisted Legal Research
Equipment - New/Replacement

Non-Personal Service Total:

TOTAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018
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Allocation

$ 4,363,458.00

22,884.00
3,046.00
20,038.00
12,060.00
3,560.00
2,035.00
22,796.00
4,092.00

3,495.00
4,091.00
4,725.00
15,651.00

40,291.00
9,895.00
170.00
68,229.00

$ 237,058.00

$ 4,600,516.00



Appendix F: Sample Complaint Form

SUPREME COURT, APPELLATE DIVISION
FIRST JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT
ATTORNEY GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
61 BROADWAY, 2”2 FLOOR
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10006
(212) 401-0800

Jorge Dopico

Chief Attorney
DATE;
ATTORNEY COMPLAINED OF:
Mr.() Ms.() Mrs.()
Last First Initial
Address: Apt. No.
City State Zip Code
Telephone: Home: ( ) Office: ( )
Cell :( ) Email Address:
YOUR NAME/INFORMATION (Complainant):
Mr.() Ms.() Mrs.()
Last First Initial
Address: Apt. No.
City State Zip Code
Telephone: Home: ( ) Office: ( )
Cell :¢( ) Email Address:

FHRA N R R HRXEREEEEEEEREEEXERRAEXERERERREEERR R RRR AR RE TR X R TR R R AT XHH AR T R RHF R R R 3 3 W BRI NI K W RN H R TR 2 F e e 6

Complaints to other agencies:

Have you filed a complaint concerning this matter with another Bar Association, District Attorney's Office or any
other agency:

If so, name of agency:

Action taken by agency:

Ko e I R B e e I N BN R T B 3N T K W K W N H H W R W R R AW R HHH X E KR EREEREXERER R RL LR RERRR XX L RREEERREEERERRAREFR RSN

Court action against attorney complained of:

Have you brought a civil or criminal action against this attorney?

If so, name of court: Index No.

e e e e e e K e e KR D B B O R B R e K R B e e S R e e e R S R K S e K e R R B R S SN K B R W R I R R H RN e

1. PLEASE SEND THE ORIGINAL PLUS ONE COPY OF YOUR COMPLAINT. PLEASE INCLUDE TWO
COPIES OF YOUR SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. DO NOT send your original supporting documents
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because we will not return them.

2, You may copy the enclosed form as many times as you wish, or you may find it online. Our website link
is: http://www.nvcourts.gov/courts/AD1/Committees&Programs/DDC/index.shtml
3. You may also state your allegations in a letter. We request separate eomplaint forms/letters for each

attorney in question.
PLEASE PRINT LEGIBLY OR TYPE IN ENGLISH

Start from the beginning and be sure to tell us why you went to the attorney, when you had contact with the
attorney, what happened each time you contacted the attorney, and what it was that the attorney did wrong.
Please attach copies of all papers that you received from the attorney, if any, including a copy of ANY RETAINER
AGREEMENT that you may have signed. DO NOT FORGET TO SEND AN ORIGINAL AND ONE COPY OF THIS
COMPILAINT AND ENCLOSURES.

UNSIGNED COMPLAINTS WILIL NOT BE PROCESSED,

Signature
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UCs-176:

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES _
PERIOD COVERED {.January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018).

SECOND, ELEVENTH AND THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICTS. SECOND DEPARTMENT
L. MATTERS PROCESSED:.
A Matters Pending at Start of Period 1,257
B. New Matters During Period 2139
C. Closed Matters Reactiviated During Period 8 o
D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 3,404
E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period _ 2,001
F. Matiers Pending-at End of Period 1,313
It MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE: CASES* MATTERS*™
A Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 1,275 1,275
B, Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 349 349
C. Referred to Other Agencies 22 22
b. Dismissed or Withdrawn 128 140
E. Dismissed through Mediation 0 0
F. Letter of Caution 0 0
F-1 Letter of Advisement- 174 178
G. Letter of Admonition 22 31
H, Reprimand 0 0
i Referred to Appeliate Division {Disc: Proc.) 37 59
J. Other*** 3 37
“Total Disposed of During Period (Same as |- £ a’bove_) 2,038 2,001
I CASES PROCESSED [N ALL COURTS:

A Cases Pending at Start of Period 49
1. Disciplinary Proceedings™** 26
2. Other**+** 23

B. Cases Recgived During Period 101
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 37
2. Qther ' 64

C. Total to be Progessed During Period 150
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D. Cases Clgsed

1. Disbarred 2
2, Disciplinary Resignations 1
3. Suspended* 11:
4, Censured ' 5
5, Privately C ensured 0
8. Remanded to Grievance Committee 7
7. Discorntinued 1
B. Dismissed 0
9, Reinstaterent Granted 9
10 Reinstatement Denied 5
11. Non:Disciplinary Resignations 23.
12, Alf-other Dispositions 24
13. Taotal Ciosed 83
Total Cases Pending at End.of Period 67
E,
1. ‘Disciplinary Proceedings ) 44
2. Other ' 23
Dated:  Brooklyn, New York -
t-Feb-19 Respectfully- Submiitted,

Diania Maxfield Kearse
Chief Counsel

Cases refers to the number of. respondentiattorneys ‘As some attorneys are the subject of multipte

complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

Matters represents mdwldual comptaints, inguiries and sua sponte mvestigataons ‘This does not

_Inc:lude telephone inguiries.

Other for the purposes of Part Il includes files closed for any reason not otherwise covered I_.de::‘
Sections A -l {e.g., filés pending but not ricluded within the disciplinary proceeding at'the time of
respondent's disbarment; files ¢closed pending outcome of ongeing litigation; files closed due to
reéspondent’s ‘death).

Disciplinary Proceeding includes anly thase proceedings before the Court which may result in final

discipline including: any Court ordered disciplinaty proceeding, motion to strike for felony conwctlon
reciprotal dlsmphne resignation under muestlgatlon

Other for the purposes of Part Wl inciudes all other. praceedings. before the Court which may not
result infinal discipline (e.g., metion for interim suspension; petition for authorization, application for

medical exam, application for conservator, motion ta reargue, appeals apphcaﬂon for reinstatement,

notification to Court of criminal conviction, voluntary resignation and request for disclosure order).

¥eexSuspended includes definite, interim, and'indefinite suspensions:




‘GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
FOR THE
SECOND, ELEVENTH AND THIRTEENTH
JUDICIAL DISTRICTS

STAFF - 2018

DIANA MAXFIELD KEARSE, CHIEF COUNSEL
MARK F. DEWAN, DEPUTY CHIEF COUNSEL
SUSAN KORENBERG, STAFF COUNSEL
SHARON GURSEN ADES, STAFF COUNSEL
SUSAN B. MASTER, STAFF COUNSEL
KATHRYN DONNELLY GUR-ARIE, STAFF COUNSEL
THOMAS GRAHAM AMON, STAFF COUNSEL
SASHA N. HOLGUIN, STAFF COUNSEL

DAVID W. CHANDLER, STAFF COUNSEL
ERIKA EDINGER, ACCOUNTANT

TIMOTHY McCORMICK, PARALEGAL
MICHAEL F. ROMANO, INVESTIGATOR
KAREN FAZIO, ASSISTANT COURT ANALYST
CLAUDETTE COLEMAN, SECRETARY

HELEN DERMAKE, CLERK

VANESSA MENDEZ, ASSISTANT COURT ANALYST




GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
FOR THE
SECOND, ELEVENTH AND THIRTEENTH
JUDICIAL DISTRICTS

COMMITTEE MEMBERS - 2018

John P. Connors, Jr., Esq. (Chairman)
Karina E. Alomar, Esq.
Hon. Ariel E. Belen
Marianne E. Bertuna, Esq.
Andrea Bonina, Esq.
Helmut Borchert, Esq.
Ronaid Martin Cerrachio*
David Louis Cohen, Esq.
Michael C. Farkas, Esq.
Lillian Garelick*

Stephen D. Hans, Esq.
Richard A. Klass, Esq.
Betty Lugo, Esq.
Domenick Napoletano, Esq.
Everett N. Nimetz, Esq.
Andrew S. Rendeiro, Esaq.
Thomas J. Rossi, Esq.
Deena Sattaur*

Thomas A. Sipp, Esq.
Bernard Vishnick, Esq.
Ellen Young*

*Lay Members




SECOND DEPARTMENT

Second, Eleventh and

Thirteenth Judicial Districts

2018

Emmanuel O. Onuaguluchi,
adisbarred attorney

Reinstatement denied

Alan Ross, admitted as
Arkady Dynin

Interim suspension

Failute to comply with lawful
‘demands of the Grievance
‘Committee and uncontroverted

evidence of misappropriation of

client funds

Jon A. Lefkowitz, admitted
as Jon Ari Lefkowitz, a
suspended attorney

Reinstatement denied

Daryll Boyd Jones, a
suspended-attorticy

Reinstatement denied

Fred Douglas Way III, a.
suspended attorney
161 AD3d 6

Public Censure

Failure to comply with-a prior
interim suspension order

Sean Gtogan, admitted as
John Gerard Grogan.

Interim suspension.

Failure to comply with lawful
deniands of the Grievance
Committee and uncontroverted
evidenceé of misappropriation of
escrow funds

David Clinton, a suspended
attorney
160 A.D.3D 642

Reinstated

Donnahue G. George, a
disbarred attorney

Reinstatement denied

Howard Schneider, a
suspended attorney
160 A.D.3d 881

Reinstated

Edward Gerard Werner, a
suspended attorney

Indefinite suspension.

Reciprocal discipline - New
Jersey




Raghubir K. Gupta, a Reinstatemenit denied
disbarred attorney
Farrel R. Donald, a Disbarred (on defaulf) Failure to cooperate.

suspended attorney
161 A.D.3d139

Miriam Lazofsky

Indefinite Suspension

Mental Infirmity [22 NYCRR

1240.14(b)]

Jose A. Polanco
162 A.D3d 16

Suspeiided 1 year

Misappropriation of escrow
funds

Marc Bruce Schram
163 AD3d12

Public Censure

Reciprocal discipline - New
Jersey

Alexander Hermian

Public Censure

Failure to cooperate and neglect

Russel Richard Kaiset; a
suspended attorney

Reinstated

Mike Meier
163 AD.3d 134

Public Censure

Reciprocal discipline - Virginia

Devon F. Clarke, adinitted as
Devon Fitzgerald Clarke, a
disbarréd attorhey '
163 A.D.3d 558

Reinstated

Michael J. Garson, a
disbarred attorney

Reinstatement denied

Chi-Yuan Hwang, a disbarred | Reinstated

attorney

Jon A. Lefkowitz, admitted Suspended 2 years Serious crime conviction -

as Jon Art Lefkowitz, a criminal facilitation in the fourth
‘susperided attorney degree; Penal Law §115.00(1)
163 AD.3d 126

Stephen E. Kalba Suspended 2 years Misappropriation of escrow

164 A.D.3d 39

funds.

Daniel E. Rauisher, admitted
as Daniel Eric Rausher
164A.D.3D 182

Public Censure

Faihire to cooperate and neglect

'.O_I'e'g :S'mol.jkar
165.A.D.3d 74

Suspended 1 year

Reciproeal disgipline - United

States District Court.for the-
Southern District of New Yotk




Hassan M.G. Alamin,
licensed le gal consultant
165 A.D.3d 88

License revoked

Exceeded the scope of his
authority as a legal consultant.

Valmiro L. Donado

Interim Suspension

Failure to comply with lawful
demands of the Grievance
Committee and unhcontroverted
evidence of misappropriation of
escrow funds

Brian D. Solomoti, admitted
as Brian David Solomon

Interim Suspension

Failure to cooperate and

misappropriation of escrow funds.

Jeffrey A. Farkas, admitted as | Reinstated

Jeffrey Alan Farkas, a

suspended attorney

167 A.D.3d 607

Stanley J. Kalathara, admitted | Disbarred (Resignation) Failure to maintain a sufficient

as Stanley Joseph Kalathara

balance in his escrow account;
failure to maintain required.
bookkeeping records for his
escrow account; failure to close
his escrow account during the
period of his suspension; failure
to insure that documents
submitted to the Grievance
Committee were completely
accurate; failed to comply witha.
judgment '




ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (01-01-2018 to 12-31-2018)

UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

5TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOURTH DEPARTMENT

I MATTERS PROCESSED:*

Matters Pending at Start of Period

New Matters During Period

Closed Matters Reactivated During Period

Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C)
Total Matters Disposed of During Period

Matters Pending at End of Period

W HO 0w

II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

115
482
7

604

455

149

Cases** Matters

A. Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 234 270
B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 23 23
C. Referred to Other Agencies 0 0
D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 75 79
E. Dismissed through Mediation 0 0
F. Letter of Advisement 33 42
G. Letter of Admonition 9 19
H. Admonition (or Reprimand)
L Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 16 22
Total Disposed of During Period (same as LE above) 390 455
III. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**
A. Cases Pending at Start of Period 14
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 10
2. Other 4
B. Cases Received During Period 16
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 5
2. Other 11
C. Total to be Processed During Period 30



For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:

1.
2.
3.

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

© 0 N AL R W

[ G Sy
— O
. .

ke
W N

Disbarred

Disciplinary Resignations
Suspended®**

Censured

Privately Censured

Remanded to Grievance Committee
Discontinued

Dismissed

Reinstatements Granted
Reinstatements Denied
Non-Disciplinary Resignations
All Other Dispositions

Total closed

E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period

1.
2.

Complaints

Disciplinary Proceedings
Other

Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)
Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

UCS-176 Rev. 01/03
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*% Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of multiple

complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*%* Jpcludes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (01-01-2018 to 12-31-2018)

7TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

I MATTERS PROCESSED:*

Matters Pending at Start of Period

New Matters During Period

Closed Matters Reactivated During Period

Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C)
Total Matters Disposed of During Period

Matters Pending at End of Period

mmHo oWy

IL. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees
Referred to Other Agencies

Dismissed or Withdrawn

Dismissed through Mediation

Letter of Advisement

Letter of Admonition

Admonition (or Reprimand)

~FmommOOw R

Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.)

Total Disposed of During Period (same as L.E above)

III. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**

A. Cases Pending at Start of Period
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other
B. Cases Received During Period
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other
C. Total to be Processed During Period

FOURTH DEPARTMENT
103
468
0
571
486
85

Cases** Matters

221 267
32 32
0 0
84 87
0 0
53 65
9 11
22 24
421 486
14

8

6
22

3

19
36



For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:

1.
2.
3.

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

Ao A A ol

e
W N = O

Disbarred

Disciplinary Resignations
Suspended***

Censured

Privately Censured

Remanded to Grievance Committee
Discontinued

Dismissed

Reinstatements Granted
Reinstatements Denied
Non-Disciplinary Resignations
All Other Dispositions

Total closed

E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period

1.
2.

Complaints

Disciplinary Proceedings
Other

Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)

Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

UCS-176 Rev. 01/03
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#* Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of multiple

complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*%% Ipcludes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (01-01-2018 to 12-31-2018)

8TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:*

mEmoOow >

Matters Pending at Start of Period

New Matters During Period

Closed Matters Reactivated During Period

Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C)
Total Matters Disposed of During Period

Matters Pending at End of Period

II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

FEeTEO 0w

Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees
Referred to Other Agencies

Dismissed or Withdrawn

Dismissed through Mediation

Letter of Advisement

Letter of Admonition

Admonition (or Reprimand)

Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.)

Total Disposed of During Period (same as I.E above)

III. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**

A.

Cases Pending at Start of Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings

2. Other "

Cases Received During Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings

2. Other

Total to be Processed During Period

FOURTH DEPARTMENT
186
658
10
854
725
129

Cases** Matters

331 375
16 18
0 0
197 226
0 0
52 58
7 11
18 37
621 725
9

4

5
18

3

15
27



For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:

1.
2.
3.

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

A e A U R o
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Disbarred

Disciplinary Resignations
Suspended***

Censured

Privately Censured

Remanded to Grievance Committee
Discontinued

Dismissed

Reinstatements Granted
Reinstatements Denied
Non-Disciplinary Resignations
All Other Dispositions

Total closed

E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period

1.
2.

Complaints

Disciplinary Proceedings
Other

Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)

Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

UCS-176 Rev. 01/03
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#* Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of multiple

complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Ipcludes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES
FOURTH JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT
PERIOD COVERED: 1/01/18 - 12/31/18

FIFTH, SEVENTH, AND EIGHTH DISTRICTS

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:*

A. Matters Pending at Start of Period 404
B. New Matters During Period 1608
C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period 17
D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 2029
E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period 1666
F. Matters Pending at End of Period 363
II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE: Cases™** Matters
A. Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 786 12
B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 71 73
C. Referred to Other Agencies 0 0
D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 356 392
E. Dismissed through Mediation 0 0
F. Letter of Advisement 138 165
G. Letter of Admonition 25 41
H. Admonition (or Reprimand)
L Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 56 83
Total Disposed of During Period (same as LE above) 1432 1666
III. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**
A. Cases Pending at Start of Period 37
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 22
2. Other 15
B. Cases Received During Period 56
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 11
2. Other 45

C. Total to be Processed During Period 93



ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES
FOURTH JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT
PERIOD COVERED: 1/01/18 - 12/31/18

D. Cases Closed

1. Disbarred S
2. Disciplinary Resignations 3
3. Suspended*** 12
4. Censured 3
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 3
7. Discontinued 3
8. Dismissed S
9. Reinstatements Granted 3
10.  Reinstatements Denied 1
11.  Non-Disciplinary Resignations 10
12.  All Other Dispositions 11
13. Total closed 59
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 33
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 22
2. Other 11

For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:
1. Complaints

2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)

3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

#% Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of
multiple complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

**% Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



Attorney

Jon E. Cooper
164 AD3d 1669
9/11/18

Joseph B. Gerardi
166 AD3d 1598
11/9/18

Jacqueline B. Jones
159 AD3d 95
2/02/18

Thomas R. McCarthy
167 AD3d 1589
12/06/18

FOURTH DEPARTMENT
(Fifth Judicial District)

Disposition

Interim
Suspension

Interim
Suspension

Suspended
One Year
effective
10/25/17

Disbarred
(Resigned)

Summary of Charges

22 NYCRR 1240.9

Judiciary Law §90(4)

Conviction upon guilty plea in U.S. District
Court, Northern District of New York, of
falsely reporting an incident in the third
degree, a federal misdemeanor. (Penal Law
§240.50[1]; 18 U.S.C. §13).

22 NYCRR 1240.10



Attorney

Mary C. Battis
158 AD3d 1227
1/17/18

Bryon W. Gross
166 AD3d 1543
11/07/18

Michael R. Hooper
166 AD3d 94
10/05/18

J. Mark Krause
160 AD3d 136
3/23/18

Matthew J. Miller
160 AD3d 1504
4/11/18

Bradley C. Rosen
166 AD3d 23
9/28/18

(Seventh Judicial District)

Disposition

Reinstated

Interim
Suspension

Censured

Censured

Disbarred
(Resigned)

Censured

Summary of Charges

Judiciary Law §90(4)

Reciprocal discipline - the State Bar of
Texas

22 NYCRR 1200.0; Rule 1.3(a) - failing to
act with reasonable diligence and
promptness in representing a client; Rule
1.3(b) - neglecting a legal matter entrusted to
him; Rule 1.4(a)(3) - failing to keep a client
reasonably informed about the status of a
matter; Rule 1.4(a)(4) - failing to supply in a
prompt manner with a client’s reasonable
requests for information; Rule 8.4 (c) -
engaging in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit or misrepresentation; Rule
8.4(d) - engaging in conduct that is
prejudicial to the administration of justice;
and Rule 8.4(h) - engaging in conduct that
adversely reflects on his fitness as a lawyer.

22 NYCRR 1240.10

22 NYCRR 1240.13 - reciprocal discipline
based upon an opinion and order of the
Committee on Grievances of the United
States District Court for the Southern
District of New York.



Amy Vichinsky
159 AD3d 84
2/02/18

Leslie Ann Weise
160 AD3d 1504
4/12/18

Suspended
One Year
effective
10/25/17

Reinstated

Serious crime conviction [Judiciary Law
§90(4)(d)] in Steuben County Court of
attempted falsifying business records in the
first degree.



Attorney

Kevin R. Allen
165 AD3d 1648
9/28/18

B. Kevin Burke, Jr.
159 AD3d 1507
2/28/18

B. Kevin Burke, Jr.
163 AD3d 64
6/29/18

Latasha D. Crutcher
162 AD3d 1776
6/19/18

Gregory L. Davis
160 AD3d 1504
4/11/18

Thomas J. Fendick
161 AD3d 155
4/17/18

Robert M. Goldstein
161 AD3d 164
3/30/18

Dawn M. Kornaker
171 AD3d 176
2/27/18

Carl B. Kustell
166 AD3d 1542
10/26/18

(Eighth Judicial District)

Disposition

Disbarred

effective 8/23/18

Interim
Suspension

Three Year
Suspension
effective
2/28/18

Disbarred

Disbarred
(Resigned)

Four Year
Suspension

Two Year
Suspension
effective
12/15/17

Interim
Suspension

Interim
Suspension

Summary of Charges

Judiciary Law §90(4)(b)

Judiciary Law §90(4)()

Serious crime conviction - attempted
repeated failure to file income tax returns in
violation of Tax Law §1808 and Penal Law
§110.00.

Judiciary Law §90(4)(b)

22 NYCRR 1240.10

Serious crime conviction - making a false
statement to a federally issued financial
institution in violation of 18 USC §1014,
a federal felony.

Reciprocal discipline based upon the United
States District Court of Appeals for the
Second Circuit’s interim suspension for
failing to respond to an order of the Second
Circuit.

22 NYCRR 1240.9

22 NYCRR 1240.9



Carl B. Kustell
169 AD3d 1459
12/28/18

G. Steven Pigeon
166 AD3d 1542
10/19/18

Edward R. Thiel
159 AD3d 1507
2/27/18

Kevin R. Wolf
161 AD3d 1593
5/01/18

Disbarred

Disbarred
effective
9/28/18

Disbarred

Interim
Suspension

Judiciary Law §90(4)(b)

Judiciary Law §90(4)(b)

Judiciary Law §90(4)(b)

Judiciary Law §90(4)(f)
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FOURTH DEPARTMENT ATTORNEY GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
PROFESSIONAL DISCIPLINARY STAFFS

Grievance Committee for the 5" Judicial District
224 Harrison Street, Suite 408

Syracuse, NY 13202

(315)401-3344

Grievance Committee for the 7" Judicial District
50 East Avenue, Suite 404

Rochester, NY 14604

(585) 530-3180

Grievance Committee for the 8" Judicial District
438 Main Street, Suite 800

Buffalo, NY 14202

(716) 845-3630

Gregory J. Huether, Chief Counsel
Anthony J. Gigliotti, Principal Counsel
Mary E. Gasparini, Principal Counsel
Sheryl M. Crankshaw, Investigator
Deborah A. Cole, Assistant Court Analyst

Gregory J. Huether, Chief Counsel

Daniel A. Drake, Principal Counsel

Andrea E. Tomaino, Principal Counsel

Kelly A. Page, Investigator

Kristen M. Reynolds, Assistant Court Analyst

Gregory J. Huether, Chief Counsel
Margaret C. Callanan, Principal Counsel
Cydney A. Kelly, Principal Counsel
Guy C. Giancarlo, Associate Counsel
Mary E. Davis, Investigator

Carolyn M. Stachura, Investigator
Craig E. Semple, Investigator

Anna M. Hunt, Senior Court Analyst
Cindy L. Pietz, Assistant Court Analyst
Lisa A. Jacobs, Assistant Court Analyst
Kathleen J. Kasperek, Secretary
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FOURTH DEPARTMENT
DISTRICT GRIEVANCE COMMITTEES

Grievance Committee for the 5" Judicial District

Ramon E. Rivera, Chair Donald R. Kimber*
Anthony S. Bottar John J. Kirwan, Jr.*
Christopher R. Bray Nicholas A. Macri
Julie Grow Denton Timothy M. McClusky
Matthew R. Dunn Edward Z. Menkin
Paula M. Engel Christina Reilly
Donald R. Gerace Thomas A. Reynolds
Robert M. Germain Vincent J. Rossi
Richard P. James Aaron J. Ryder

Loretta R. Kilpatrick William P. Schultz*

Lydia L. Young

Grievance Committee for the 7" Judicial District

Steven V. Modica, Chair Christi L. Miller
Betsy L. Album Elizabeth Nicolas
Peter H. Baker . Angelo A. Rose
Bradley Calkins* Leon T. Sawyko

V. Bruce Chambers Brian C. Schu
Norman J. Chirco Dennis P. Sedor
Michael Cobbs Mark Siwiec*
Bradley Kammholz Tiffany M. Sorgen
Susan Kramarsky* John E. Tyo

Mary Walpole Lightsey Kevin G. Van Allen

Stephanie L. Woodward

Grievance Committee for the 8" Judicial District

Mark R. McNamara, Chair Douglas M. Heath
Ursuline Bankhead* Morris L. Horwitz
Laurie M. Beckerink Carolyn Ruth Kellogg
Thomas C. Brady Charles F. Koller*
Lauren E. Breen Joseph A. Matteliano
Francis X. Carroll Elizabeth M. Midgley
Tasha Dandridge-Richburg William M. Paterson*
Peter J. Degnan David M. Roach

John J. DelMonte Richard B. Scott

Lyle T. Hajdu Mary Ann E. Wiater

Ruth R. Wiseman

* Lay Member



JEROLD R. RUDERMAN ‘ GARY L.CASELLA
CHAIRPERSON State of PNew ?nrk CHIEFCOUNSEL
Griebance Committee for the __FAITHLORENZO
Ninth Judicial Bistrict

CROSSWEST OFFICE CENTER FORRESTSTRAUSS
399 KNOLLWOOD ROAD - SUITE 200 MATTHEWLEE-RENERT
WHITE PLAINS, N.Y. 10603 ANTONIAP.CIPOLLONE

914-824-5070 ANTHONYR. WYNNE

GLENNE.SIMPSON
MATTHEW C. TOAL
MICHAELJ. KEARSE

July 22, 2019 STAFFCOUNSEL

PATRICK
T

A.
INVESTIG

1IGA
Kathleen Baxter, Esqg.

General Counsel

Executive Offices

New York State Bar Association

One Elk Street

Albany, New York 12207

Re: 2018 Annual Report

Dear Ms. Baxter:

Enclosed are the following relating to the 2018 Annual
Report of the New York State Bar Association:

1) Statistics for the Grievance Committee
for the Ninth Judicial District

2) Local Bar Association Activities
3) Summary of Disciplinary Cases

4) Personnel: Committee Members and Staff

Very truly yours,

Gary L. Casella
Chief Counse
GLC:rdp
Enclosures
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ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES
YEAR-END (January 1, through December 31, 2018)
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT SECOND DEPARTMENT

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:

A. Matters Pending at Start of Period 584

B. New Matters During Period 1856

C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period 21

D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 2461
E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period 1644
F. Matters Pending at end of Period 817

II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:
Cases Matters
A. Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 622 622
B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 253 253
C. Referred to Other Agencies 42 42
D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 301 - 301
E. Dismissed Through Mediation 0 0
F. Letter of Advisement ' 133 133
G. Letter of Admonition 55 55
H. Reprimand 0 0
I. Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 87 113
J.  Other 125 125
Total Disposed of During Period (same as I. E above): 1618 1644
III. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:
Cases Matters
A. Cases Pending at Start of Period 24 50
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 10 (17)
2. Other - 14 (33)
B. Cases Received During Period 87 113

1. Disciplinary Proceedings 19 (41)
2. Other 68 (72)

C. Total to be Processed During Period 111 163
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Year-End 2018

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

Cases Matters
1. Disbarred 4 4
2. Disciplinary Resignation 2 2
3. Suspended 9 39
4. Censured 1 1
5. Privately Censured 0 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 0 0
7. Discontinued 0 0
8. Dismissed 0 0
9. Reinstatements Granted 0 0
10. Reinstatements Denied 1 1
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignation 28 28
12. All Other Dispositions 19 19
13. Total Closed 64 94
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 47 69
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 19 (41)
2. Other 28 (28)
DATED: January 14, 2019
‘White Plains, New York
Respectfully submitted,

GARY L. CASELLA

Chief Counsel



DUTCHESS COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION Ninth Judiciz Drezrizt
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE Grievance Cornmitiee
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:
Matters pending on January 1, 2018 ...........

New matters received during period ...........

ch

Ciosed matters reactivated during period .....

Total matters to be processed during period
(BF+BHC = D) ittt ittt ittt s et ettt e

C
\'A
Total matters disposed of during period ...... Cﬂ

Matters pending on December 31, 2018 .........

IT. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failing to State Complaint ....... _g?__
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees _égL_
Referred to Other Agencies . ... . .i.iiiiiiinenan. _S;L_
Dismissed ...ttt ittt ;:1__
Dismissed with Advisorv Language ............. ,_1;2_
Letter of Caution ......cetetienreeenroeanannn __EQ_
Letter of Admonition ......ciiiiinniiininnnn. _J;l_
Reprimand ...ttt ittt ettt ittt i _j;z_
9

Total disposed of during period ..............
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ORANGE COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

January 1,

2018 throuhh December 31, 2018

MATTERS PROCESSED:
Matters pending on Janua
New matters received dur

Closed matters reactivat

ry 1, 2018

ing period

............

ed during period

Total matters to be progessed during period

(A+B+C D)

...........

Total matters disposed a

Matters pending on December 31,

MATTERS DISPOSED OF E

Referred to Other Discip
Referred to Other Agenci
Dismissed .............
Dismissed with Advisory
Letter of Caution .....
Letter of Admonition
Reprimand

.............

Total disposed of during

........................

f during period
2018

..........

Y COMMITTEE:

tate Compiaint .........
linary Committees .....
S

--------------

........................

.........................

........................

...............
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PUTNAM COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:
Matters pending on January 1, 2018 ............
New matters received during period ............
Closed matters reactivated during period ......

Total matters to be processed during period
(A+BHC = D) ittt ettt ettt

Total matters disposed of during period .......

Matters pending on December 31, 2018 ..........

II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected és Failing to State Complaint ........
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees .....
Referred to Other Agencies .......cecuienaca..
Dismissed ....iviniiiiiinennnn et
Dismissed with Advisory Language ..............
Letter of Caution . ... ittt iiennnneneeannonns

Letter of Admonition .........ciiiiiiiiiiina.nn
Reprimaﬁd .....................................

Total disposed of during period ...............
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ROCKLAND COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEER

APPELLATE DIVISICON, SECOND DEPARTMENT

NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

January 1, 2018 threugh December 31, 2018

MATTERS PROCESSED:

Matters pending on January 1, 2018 .....

New matters received during period .....

Closed matters reactivated during period

L

Total matters to be processed during period
(A+B+C = D) cvsivsannnnns e

Total matters disposed of during period

Matters pending on December 31, 2018 ...

MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failing to State Complaint .

Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees

Referred to Other Agencies .....
Dismissed +evesvenriannnrinesaons
Dismissed with Advisory Language

Letter of Caution ... cumwence

Letter of Admonition ...eesvsssos

Reprimand . ..iiinacsesesinonanss

Total disposed of during period
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WESTCHESTER COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018

L MATTERS PROCESSED:

A. Matters pending on January 1, 2018: 42

B. New matters received during period: 32

C. Closed matters reactivated during period: __ 0

D. Total matters to be processed during period (A+B+C=D): 74
E. Total matters disposed of during period: __42

F. Matters pending on December 31, 2018: 32

1L MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

A. Rejected as Failing to State Complaint: 0

B. Referred to other Disciplinary Committees: __3
C. Referred to Other Agencies: _ 0 _

D. Dismissed: _ 39

E. Dismissed with Advisory Language: _ 0

F. Letter of Caution: _0

G. Letter of Admonition: _ 0

H. Reprimand: __ 0

1. Total disposed of during period: __42




GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

PUBLIC DISPOSITIONS / DISCIPLINE

C. Robert Clemensen

Keisha Dixon

Jeffrey M. Goldfarb

Osvaldo J. Gonzalez

Lawrence Ivan Horowitz
Suspended Attorney

Samuel D. Jackson

Corey B. Kaye

2018

Indefinite Suspension
May 14, 2018

Suspension Pending Further
Order
February 1, 2018

Suspension Pending Further
Order
November 14, 2018

Suspension - Three Years
Pursuant to Discipline Upon
Consent

October 10, 2018

Application for
Reinstatement Denied
December 28, 2018

Disbarment
December 19, 2018

Disbarment Pursuant to
Resignation
April 25,2018

22 NYCRR 1240.14(b):
Incapacity due to medical
illness.

22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(5).

22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(2), (3)
and (5).

RPC 1.15(a): Commingling;
RPC 1.15(b)(2): Failure to
designate escrow account;
RPC 1.15(c)(3): Failure to
Account;

RPC 1.15(c)(3): Failure to
deliver funds

RPC 1.15(d)(1) and (2): Failure
to maintain records;

RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness as lawyer.

Judiciary Law §90(4)(b):
Conviction of felony.

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation.



Leon Kornfeld

Marc G. Kurzman

Mitchell J. Lenchner

Feng Li
Suspended Attorney

Maureen McNamara
Suspended Attorney

Alvin Pasternak
Disbarred Attorney

Kenneth S. Pelsinger

Suspension - Two Years
November 7, 2018

Public Censure
September 12, 2018

Disbarment Pursuant to
Resignation
April 25,2018

Application for Leave to
Appeal to Court of Appeals
Denied

January 16,2018

Disbarment
February 28, 2018

Application for
Reinstatement Held in
Abeyance and matter
Referred to Committee on
Character and Fitness
February 1, 2018

Disbarred
August 29, 2018

RPC 1.15(a): Breach of fiduciary
duty, misappropriation and
commingling.

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon sixty day
suspension in Minnesota.

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation.

RPC 8.4(c): Conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation;
RPC 8.4(c): Conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.



Brian Primes

Richard A. Roberts

James V. Simmonds
Suspended Attorney

Peter V. Spagnulo

Michael R. Varble

Disbarred
July 25,2018

Suspension - Two Years
Pursuant to Discipline Upon
Consent

August 29, 2018

Application for
Reinstatement Held in
Abeyance and matter
Referred to Committee on
Character and Fitness
July 5, 2018

Suspension Pending Further
Order
January 4, 2018

Suspension Pending Further
Order
January 4, 2018

RPC 1.15(a): Breach of fiduciary
duty, misappropriation and
commingling;

RPC 1.15(b)(2): Failure to
designate escrow account;

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice.

RPC 1.3(a): Failure to act with
reasonable diligence;

RPC 1.3(b): Neglect;

1.5(d)(4): Non-refundable fee
agreement;

RPC 1.7(a) & 1.8(a): Conflict of
interests;

RPC 1.15(c)(3): Failure to
Account;

RPC 1.15(c)(3): Failure to
deliver funds;

RPC1.16(e): Failure to refund
unearned fee;

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.

Judiciary Law §90(4)(f) and
22 NYCRR.12(b)(2): Conviction
of Serious Crime.

22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(3)
and (5).



Daren Allen Webber Suspension Pending Further 22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Order Discipline based upon
July 11, 2018 suspension pending further order
by U.S. District Court
(S.D.N.Y).



GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT,
SECOND DEPARTMENT
MEMBERS
RUDERMAN, Jerold R. (Chairperson)
BELTRAN, Karen T
BERGER, Ricki H.
FINNEGAN, John E.
GLAZER, Robert *
HOLZINGER, John F. Jr.*
KESSLER, Leonard
KHATEEB, Atheeb U.
LERMAN, Barbara
McMANUS, Diane R.*
MEVEC, Edward R.
NAUGHTON, Kelly
NICHOLS, Eon S.
PLOTSKY, Glen A.
SAYEGH, William G.
SHAPIRO, Mona
TRAVER, Kelly L.
VALK, Rebecca A.
WISE, David R.
WOODLIEF, Wesley*

YELLEN, Susan G.

*Lay Members



GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT,
SECOND DEPARTMENT

DISCIPLINARY PERSONNEL

Gary L. Casella Virginia E. Mordiglia
Chief Counsel Court Analyst

Faith Lorenzo Maryellen Horan

Deputy Chief Counsel Assistant Court Analyst
Antonia Cipollone Ellen M. Tallevi

Staff Counsel Senior Court Analyst
Michael J. Kearse Claire Zeppieri

Staff Counsel Secretary

Matthew Lee-Renert Denise Santamorena
Staff Counsel Secretary (Half Time)
Glenn E. Simpson Rita Passidomo

Staff Counsel Secretary

Forrest Strauss Anita Bellenchia

Staff Counsel Secretary

Matthew C. Toal Joanne Roncallo

Staff Counsel Senior Appellate Court Clerk

Anthony R. Wynne
Staff Counsel

Patrick Smith
Principal Court Analyst



UCS-176 ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (Annual)
JANUARY - DECEMBER 2018

TENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

. MATTERS PROCESSED:

Matters Pending at Start of Period

New Matters During Period

Closed Matters Re-activated During Period
Total Matters to be Processed During Period
Total Matters Disposed of During Period
Matters Pending at End of Period

mmoowx»

II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE

Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees
Referred to Other Agencies

Dismissed or Withdrawn

Dismissed through Mediation

Letter of Caution

Letter of Advisement

Letter of Admonition

Reprimand

Referred to Appellate Division (DPs)

. Other

Total Disposed of During Period

CCIETMUOW

)

lil. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS

A. Cases Pending at Start of Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

B. Cases Received During Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

C. Total to be Processed During Period

SECOND DEPARTMENT

1,051
1,883

25

Cases

825
211
99
278
15

224
27

35
a1
1806

IO'I
o]

27

o W
N

~g |
-

—_
(o))
(&)

|

2,959
1974
985

Matters

825
211
99
278
15

1
229
31

0

36
249
1974



NYS Grievance Committee
Tenth Judicial District
2018 Annual Report

Page 2

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

1. Disbarred 6
2. Disciplinary Resignations 3
3. Suspended 11
4. Censured 2
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 6
7. Discontinued 5
8. Dismissed 0
9. Reinstatements Granted 5
10. Reinstatements Denied 3
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignation 21
12. All Other Dispositions 22
13. Total Closed 84
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 81
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 40
2. Other 41

Dated: January 9, 2019
Hauppauge, New York Respectfully Submitted,

CATHERINE A. SHERIDAN
Acting Chief Counsel




LOCAL BAR ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES
JANUARY - DECEMBER 2018

NASSAU COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION

A. Cases Closed to Grievance Committee 26
B. Cases Closed to Mediation _8
Total Cases Referred: 34
SUFFOLK COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
A Cases Closed to Grievance Committee 11
B. Cases Closed to Mediation 7
Total Cases Referred: 18

TOTAL CASES REFERRED TO L OCAL BAR ASSOCIATIONS:

* Numbers do not include matters referred to Fee Dispute

52



John R. Hibner,
a suspended attorney

Ryan Saraco, admitted as
Ryan Ronald Saraco

Nancy P. Enoksen, admitted
as Nancy Patricia Enkosen,
a suspended attorney

159 AD3d 55

Keith John Kalmus,
a disbarred attorney

Thomas Anthony Sirianni,
a suspended attorney

Kenneth J. Warren, admitted
as Kenneth Jay Wapnick
160 AD3d 35

Fredric H. Aaron, admitted as
Fredrick Harlan Aaron, a
suspended attorney

160 AD3d 150

NYS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
TENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
PUBLIC DISPOSITIONS/SANCTIONS

2018

Reinstatement denied 2/1/2018

Interim Suspension 2/6/2018

Disbarment 2/14/2018

Reinstatement granted
2/28/2018

Reinstatement granted
2/28/2018

Disbarment 3/7/2018
effective 10/31/2014

4 Year Suspension 3/21/2018

Serious crime, Fraud, 18 USC
1012

Misappropriated client funds,
failed to promptly pay funds to
her client, improperly obtained
a confession of judgment for
legal fees in a domestic
relations matter, engaged in
conduct adversely reflecting

on her fitness to practice law
by failing to provide a client with
a valid satisfaction of judgment,
breached her fiduciary duties
by improperly issuing checks
from her attorney trust account,
engaged in conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice
by failing to cooperate with the
Grievance Committee's
investigation

Sexual Battery, felony, 3rd
degree {Ohio), D felony in NY

Accessory after the factin a
fraudulent scheme, federal
felony



Ronald A. Lenowitz, admitted

as Ronald Alan Lenowitz
161 AD3d 30

Jeremiah John Ryall
161 AD3d 106

Gerard Terry
161 AD3d 167

Brian Christopher Morris
162 AD3d 88

Judith B. Sporn
162 AD3d 157

Joel |. Sanders
163 AD3d 86

Steven D. Hamburg

163 AD3d 7

Sam Z. Shore
163 AD3d 150

2 Year Suspension 4/11/2018
commencing 5/11/2018

Disbarment based on
Resignation 4/18/2018

Disbarment 5/9/2018
Indefinite Suspension
5/23/2018

Disbarment 5/23/2018

Disbarment 6/20/2018
effective 5/8/2017

6 Month Suspension 6/20/2018
commencing 7/20/2018

2 Year Suspension 6/27/2018

Misappropriated funds
entrusted to him, commingled
client funds with his own funds,
made cash withdrawals from
special account & engaged in
conduct adversely reflecting on
his fitness as a lawyer

Breach of fiduciary duties,
failure to preserve & account
for funds entrusted to him,
commingling of funds entrusted
to him as a fiduciary with
personal funds & making

cash withdrawals from his
escrow account

Criminal tax fraud, 4th degree,
E felony

Reciprocal Discipline - Florida
Suspension

Reciprocal Discipline -
Connecticut Disciplinary
Resignhation

Scheme to defraud, 1st degree,
E felony, violating General
Business Law, E felony &
conspiracy, 5th degree, a
misdemeanor

Misappropriation of funds
entrusted to him as a fiduciary
in 3 real estate transactions

11 counts of criminal facilitation,
4th degree, A misdemeanor &
6 counts of petit larceny,

A misdemeanor



Laurence B. McMillan admitted
as Laurence Benet McMillan
164 AD3d 50

Jacqueline Harounian,
a suspended attorney

Disbarment 7/18/2018

Reinstatement granted
7/18/2018

Conduct adversely reflecting

on fithess as a lawyer, engaged
in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation, conduct
prejudicial to adminsitration of
justice, made a false statement
of fact or law to a tribunal &
failed to correct a false
statement of material fact or
law previously made to the
tribunal, misappropriated funds
held by him in a fiduciary
capacity as administrator or an
estate & commingled funds of
his own with funds belonging

to other persons in his IOLA
account



Kyle E. Norton, admitted as
Kyle Eric Norton, a suspended
attorney

163 AD3d 198

Gregg A. Luckman
163 AD3d 172

5 Year Suspension
7/18/2018

Disbarment 7/25/2018
based on Resignation

Neglected a legal matter, failed
to consult with his clients in
order to make informed
decisions about the case,
failed to keep clients informed
about the status of their case,
failed to promplty comply with
his clients' request for

-information, charged his clients

an excessive fee, engaged

in conduct adversely reflecting
on his fitness as a lawyer,

2 counts of aggravated
unlicensed operation of a
vehicle, 3rd degree,
unclassified misdemeanors,

2 counts of operation while
registration or privlege is
suspended or revoked,
unclassified misdemeanors,

2 counts of operation of a motor
vehicle under the influence of
acochol or drugs, unclassified
misdemeanors, 2 counts of
leaving the scene of an
incident without reporting
personal injury, misdemeanors,
criminal mischief, 4th degree,
A misdemanor & criminal
possession of a controlled
substance, 7th degree, A
misdemeanor.

Misappropriation of client funds,
failure to safeguard funds held
in escrow & ongoing misuse

of client funds.



Anthony J. Colleluori, admitted
as Anthony John Colleluori-
164 AD3d 88

Ryan Saraco, admitted as
Ryan Ronald Saraco, a
suspended attorney

164 AD3d 69

Nancy P. Enoksen, admitted
as Nancy Patricia Enoksen,
a suspended attorney

164 AD3d 16

Ira C. Podlofsky
165 AD3d 37

Public Censure 8/1/2018

2 Year Suspension
8/8/2018

Disbarment dated 8/15/2018
effective 1/29/2018

2 Year Suspension 9/12/2018,
commencing 10/12/2018

Improperly divided a fee for
legal services with another
lawyer who was not associated
with his law firm without
disclosing to his client that the
division of fees was being made
and without the client's written
agreement or acknowledgment
to that division of fees, failed

to promptly refund that part

of the fee paid in advance that
he had not earned, engaged in
conduct that is prejudicial to
the administration of justice &
engaged in conduct that
adversely reflects on his

~ fitness as a lawyer.

1 co‘unt of housing & urban
development fraud, in violation
18 USC §1012

1 count grand larceny, 2nd
degree, in viclation of Penal
Law §155.40(1), C Felony

Misappropriated escrow funds
entrusted to him as a fiduciary,
issued checks made payable
to cash, utilized checks from
his trust account identified only
as "[ra Podlofsky, Esqg.,"
without including in the title
"Attorney Special Account,”
"Attorney Trust Account” or
"Attorney Escrow Account",
and engaged in conduct
prejudicial to the administration
of justice.



Donald V. Pupke Jr.,
166 AD3d 49

Anthony C. Donofrio
a suspended attorney

Jared H. Rabkin, an attorney
and couselor at law
167 AD3d 110

Donna F. Sheidlower, admitted
as Donna Faith Yanofsky
167 AD3d 213

Sandra Mara Sands,
a disbarred attorney

2 Year Suspension 9/26/2018
commencing 10/26/2018

Reinstatement granted
10/31/2018

Indefinite Suspension
dated 11/14/2018

Disbarment 11/28/2018
based on Resignation

Reiné’gatement denied
12/27/2018

Misappropriation of client funds
enfrusted to him as a fiduciary,
and commingled personal
funds with client funds,
neglected a legal matter

& failed to act diliegently in his
representation of a client, acted
in a manner prejudicial to the
adminstration of justice &
acted in a manner adversely
reflecting on his fitness as a

lawyer.

Failure to re-register & failure
to cooperate

Neglected collection matters,
falsified status reports of work
done to cover up neglect &
transmitted these reports to
clients, knowing these reports
were false.



PERSONNEL OF THE GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE - 10" JUDICIAL DISTRICT

(At the End of December 2018)

CATHERINE A. SHERIDAN, Chief Counsel

NANCY B. GABRIEL, Staff Counsel

ELIZABETH A. GRABOWSKI, Staff Counsel
STACEY J. SHARPELLETTI, Staff Counsel
MICHAEL FUCHS, Staff Counsel

MICHELE FILOSA, Staff Counsel

ROBERT C. CABBLE, Staff Counsel

IAN P. BARRY, Staff Counsel

CHRISTOPHER KERN, Principal Court Analyst
DOUGLAS K. KRONENBERG, Senior Court Analyst
KERRY E. SMITH, Court Analyst

PHYLLIS CARUSILLO, Assistant Court Analyst
MERA MAHARAJ-PANAN, Law Stenographer
PATRICIA LUMLEY, Law Stenographer

JANET MCQUEENEY, Law Stenographer

JOANNE MC LAUGHLIN, Senior Appellate Office Assistant

GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS

(At the End of December 2018)

BARRY M. SMOLOWITZ, ESQ., Chair
M. DAVID TELL, ESQ., Vice Chair
JOYCE M. BISSO, Ed.D.

ANNE M. BRACKEN, ESQ,
JEANMARIE P. COSTELLO, ESQ.
LOUIS C. ENGLAND, ESQ.
MARK C. GANN, ESQ.

JOHN H. GIONIS, ESQ.

DORIAN R. GLOVER, ESQ.
ELENA L. GREENBERG, ESQ
ERIC H. HOLTZMAN, ESQ.
ALONZO G. JACOBS, ESQ.
STEPHANIE JUDD, ESQ.
LORRAINE M. KORTH, ESQ.
ANTHONY M. LA PINTA, ESQ.
STEVEN G. LEVENTHAL, ESQ.
GREGORY M. LISI, ESQ.
JAMES A. PASCARELLA, ESQ.
MICHAEL T. PILEVSKY

ARTHUR E. SHULMAN, ESQ.
MARILYN SOCHALSKI



ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

PERIOD COVERED (ANNUAL REPORT 2018)

THIRD DEPARTMENT

L. MATTERS PROCESSED: *

Matters Pending at Start of Period
New Matters During Period
Closed Matters Reactivated During Period

Total Matters Disposed of During Period
Matters Pending at End of Period

Tmoow>

Il MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees
Referred to Other Agencies

Dismissed or Withdrawn

Dismissed through Mediation

Letter of Advisement

Admonition

Admonition-Personal Delivery

Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.)

TIOMMOOwW>

1772
3466
0

Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C)

Cases™

489
96

6

144

0

71

35

8

206

Total Disposed of During Period (same as |.E above.) 1055

M. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:

A. Cases Pending at Start of Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

Cases Received During Period
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

B. Total to be Processed During Period

N |
al|l—

95
134

5238
1183
4055

Matters
525
112

7
152
0
69
45
13
260

1183

56

189

245



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

C. Cases Closed
1. Disbarred 19
2. Disciplinary Resignations 0
3. Suspended*** 24
4. Censured 9
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 0
7. Discontinued 0
8. Dismissed 7
9. Reinstatements Granted 9
10. Reinstatements Denied 2
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations 88
12. All Other Dispositions 55
13. Total closed 209

E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 36
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 30
2. Other 6

For the purposes of this report, the term “Matter” includes the following:
1. Complaints

2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)

3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

** Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject
of multiple complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



Decided and Entered: December 27, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13

Suspension:

Matter of Phyllis R. McCoy-Jacien - D-172-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Joel Antonio Padilla - D-171-18

Decided and Entered: December 20, 2018

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Benjamin Michael Seel - D-170-18
Matter of Joshua Stephen Landau - D-169-18

Decided and Entered: December 13, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) 81240.13
Censure:

Matter of Frank A. Lauletta - D-166-18

Suspension:

Matter of Paul Joseph McArdle - D-165-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Mark Douglas Dillon - D-168-18
Matter of Vernon Richard Johnson - D-167-18

Decided and Entered: December 6, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13

Suspension:

Matter of Lori Jo Sklar - D-150-18
Matter of Sanghwan Hahn - D-149-18




Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) §1240.9(a)

Suspension:

Matter of Philip George Ackerman - D-158-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Sarah Neesa Young - D-164-18
Matter of Corinne Ruth Seibert - D-163-18
Matter of Kevin Allen Wiggins - D-162-18
Matter of Lawrence B. Gotlieb - D-161-18
Matter of Daniel David Cotta - D-160-18
Matter of Jozef Willem Pinxten - D-159-18
Matter of John Robert Stoll - D-157-18

Matter of Jennifer Lynne Porcaro - D-156-18
Matter of Arthur Alexander Goodell - D-155-18
Matter of Allan Bennett Goldstein - D-154-18
Matter of Elizabeth Mullikin Drake - D-153-18
Matter of Andree Kahn Blumstein - D-152-18
Matter of Jennifer Anne Cottell - D-151-18

Decided and Entered: November 29, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of Chirayu Aaron Patel - D-145-18

Suspension:

Matter of Daniel John McCarthy - D-146-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Stacey Lynn Katz - D-148-18

Decided and Entered: November 21, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Censure:

Matter of Michael Laurence D'Amico - D-144-18




Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) 81240.9(a)

Suspension:

Matter of Peter Hughes Barry - D-143-18

Decided and Entered: November 15, 2018

Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) 81240.9(a)

Suspension:

Matter of Albert Hessberg Il - D-142-18

Disbarment After Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) 81240.9(b)
Disbarment:

Matter of Joseph James Battaglia - D-141-18

Decided and Entered: November 8, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) 81240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of Barry Dean Friedman - D-140-18

Suspension:
Matter of Todd Clifford Sicklinger - D-139-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Frances Mary Coopman - D-138-18

Decided and Entered: November 1, 2018

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) 81240.8

Suspension:

Matter of Glen W. Brownell - D-137-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Forrest Scott Freedman - D-136-18




Matter of Michael Adam Weiss - D-135-18

Decided and Entered: October 25, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Censure:

Matter of Alexander Pavliv - D-131-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Eva Grace Stieglitz Shell - D-132-18

Denied:

Matter of Sarah Neesa Young D-134-18
Matter of Justin Timothy Ko - D-133-18

Decided and Entered: October 18, 2018

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) 81240.8
Censure:

Matter of Robert W. Carey - D-129-18

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) 81240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of John Richard Canney Ill - D-126-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Denied:

Matter of Benjamin Conlon - D-130-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Nicholas John Sciretta - D-128-18
Matter of Scott Michael Lara - D-127-18




Decided and Entered: October 4, 2018

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Joel Franklin Brenner - D-124-18

Decided and Entered: September 20, 2018

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Kasey Garrett Nordeen - D-123-18
Matter of Andrew Todd Redman - D-122-18
Matter of Kevin Leo Oberdorfer - D-121-18
Matter of Heather Shannon Glass - D-120-18
Matter of Caitlin Guilford - D-119 -18
Matter of Cara Anne Gardner - D-118-18
Matter of Ryan Patrick Avery - D-117-18

Decided and Entered: September 13, 2018

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8
Granted:

Matter of Eoin Nicholas McDonagh - D-112-18

Felony Convictions (22 NYCRR) §1240.12(a)
Disbarment:

Matter of Richard James Sherwood - D-116-18

Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) 81240.9(a)

Suspension:

Matter of Lincoln Lim Tan, Jr. - D-115-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22 (a)
Granted:

Matter of Ryan Joseph Bird - D-113-18




Decided and Entered: September 6, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of Christopher Lauren Graham - D-114-18

Felony Convictions (22 NYCRR) §1240.12(a)
Disbarment:

Matter of Sara O'Connor Kenney - D-111-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Denied:

Matter of Jing Tan - D-110-18

Decided and Entered: August 23, 2018

Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) §1240.9(a)
Denied:

Matter of Craig Raymond Fritzsch - D-109-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Jeffrey Whitehead Spencer - D-108-18
Matter of Mark Fisher - D-107-18

Decided and Entered: August 16, 2018

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Herman Osofsky - D-106-18

Decided and Entered: August 9, 2018

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Paul Alan Serbinowski - D-105-18




Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Jonathan Dean Moler - D-104-18

Matter of Samantha Marian Lowen - D-103-18

Matter of Stanly Ray Jensen - D-102-18

Matter of Rochelle Lyn Haller - D-101-18

Matter of Ira Genberg - D-100-18

Matter of Kathleen Marie Creamer - D-99-18

Matter of Moriah Howat Berger, aka Moriah Howat Berger Allen - D-98-18
Matter of William Maurice Pridgen - D-97-18

Matter of Joseph R. Fleming - D-96-18

Decided and Entered: August 2, 2018

Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) §1240.9(a)

Suspension:

Matter of Ryan Yu - D-93-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Jules Philip Levine - D-91-18

Denied:

Matter of William A. Hicks, 11l - D-95-18
Matter of James R. Grimes, 11l - D-94-18
Matter of Samuel Allagash Jennings - D-90-18

Decided and Entered: July 19, 2018

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8(a)(5)

Suspension:

Matter of Glen W. Brownell - D-87-18

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13

Suspension:

Matter of Jude Chukwuma Ezeala - D-88-18




Decided and Entered: July 12, 2018

Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) 81240.9(a)

Suspension:

Matter of Cassandra Lee Channing - D-82-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) 81240.16(a)
Denied:

Matter of Benjamin Conlon - D-83-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) 81240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Marla Lynn Soffer - D-86-18

Matter of Gerhard Ferdinand Volz - D-85-18
Matter of Gracia Fiona Maria Burkert - D-84-18
Matter of Jon David Corey - D-81-18

Matter of Galen Bundy Bascom - D-80-18
Matter of David Harrison Becker - D-79-18

Decided and Entered: June 28, 2018

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8

Suspension:

Matter of Mary Elizabeth Rain - D-78-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Jeffrey T. Canale, NKA Jeffrey T. LaCroix - D-77-18

Decided and Entered: June 21, 2018

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8
Disbarment:

Matter of Erin Elizabeth Hayes - D-76-18

Suspension:

Matter of Ronald Leonard Daigle, Jr. - D-74-18




Matter of Craig Raymond Fritzsch - D-73-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)

Matter of Liang-Houh Shieh - D-75-18

Decided and Entered: June 14, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of Lucia Cordeiro DeMelo - D-72-18

Decided and Entered: June 7, 2018

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8(a)(5)

Suspension:

Matter of Melvin M. Marin - D-68-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) 81240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Mary Elizabeth Gaiser - D-70-18

Denied:

Matter of Marsha Alridge - D-71-18
Matter of Adam Branden Mingal - D-69-18

Decided and Entered: May 24, 2018

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Julie Ann Ettelson, NKA Julie A. Laczkowski - D-66-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Marc Stuart Friedman - D-67-18




Decided and Entered: May 17, 2018

Disbarment After Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) 81240.9(b)
Disbarment:

Matter of Richard T. DiStefano - D-65-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Denied:

Matter of Michael Murano Castle - D-64-18

Decided and Entered: May 10, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Granted:

Matter of Humberta Maria Goncalves AKA Humberta M. Goncalves-Babbitt - D-63-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Steven Douglas McCormick - D-62-18
Matter of Timothy J. Holland - D-61-18

Matter of Luanh Lloyd D'Mello - D-60-18
Matter of Brian William Bombassaro - D-59-18
Matter of Sham Jayant Bhat - D-58-18

Decided and Entered: May 3, 2018

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Denied:

Matter of Richard Castellane - D-57-18

Decided and Entered: April 26, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of Alexander David Walter - D-52-18




Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Denied:

Matter of Gary Lee Printy, Jr. - D-54-18
Matter of Caroline Cynn - D- 53-18

Granted:

Matter of Alice Wang - D-56-18
Matter of Pryor Andrew Garnett - D-55-18
Matter of Samuel Mills Lyddan - D-51-18

Decided and Entered: April 19, 2018

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) 81240.22(a)
Denied:

Matter of Jason Hadid - D-50-18

Decided and Entered: April 12, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) 81240.13

Suspension:

Matter of Mizell Campbell - D-49-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Denied:

Matter of Karen Gay Castaneda - D-47-18

Granted:

Matter of Randolph Louis Goldman - D-48-18
Matter of Edwin Samuel Deberdt - D-46-18
Matter of Divya Seth - D-45-18

Matter of James P. Winston - D-44-18

Matter of John B. Nolan - D-43-18

Decided and Entered: March 29, 2018

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:
Matter of Harvey Weissbard - D-42-18

Matter of John Thornton Sartore - D-41-18
Matter of Anna Rachel Maitland - D-40-18




Matter of Jamie Elizabeth Dickson - D-39-18

Decided and Entered: March 22, 2018

Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) §1240.9(a)

Suspension:

Matter of Joseph James Battaglia - D-38-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Kelly Ann Higashi - D-30-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Evan Nathaniel Turgeon - D-37-18

Matter of Jeongsoo Soh - D-36-18

Matter of Frank George Seitz, 11l - D-35-18

Matter of Melissa Ann Roover - D-34-18

Matter of Igor Viktorovich Novikov - D-33-18

Matter of Leigh Urfer Ozdemir - D-32-18

Matter of Saskia Dagmar Kindermann-Roehm - D-31-18
Matter of Sarah Kathryn Dugan - D-29-18

Decided and Entered: March 15, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) 81240.13
Censure:

Matter of Stanley Chang Woon Foo - D-27-18

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Denied:

Matter of Jessica Esser - D-28-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Peter Anthony Gaudioso - D-26-18




Decided and Entered: March 1, 2018

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Denied:

Matter of Jabeen Zehra Reza - D-25-18

Matter of Christopher Eberhart Kemmitt - D-24-18
Matter of Jennifer Anne Cottell - D-23-18

Matter of Jason Clayborn Astle - D-22-18

Decided and Entered: February 8, 2018

Disbarment After Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) 81240.9(b)
Disbarment:

Matter of Christopher Craig Humphrey - D-21-18

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Jennifer Mary Zachariah - D-20-18
Matter of Andrew John Waghorn - D-19-18
Matter of Jason Lawrence Stern - D-18-18
Matter of Brian Scott Shevlin - D-17-18
Matter of Ryan John Long - D-16-18

Matter of Robert Bergman Levy - D-15-18
Matter of Rhonda Marlene Levey - D-14-18
Matter of Daniel Stewart Korobkin - D-13-18
Matter of Jennie Leah Kneedler - D-12-18
Matter of Robert John Cameron - D-11-18
Matter of Jan Willem Biemans - D-10-18
Matter of Ryan Tharen Almstead - D-9-18

Decided and Entered: February 1, 2018

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of Peter Lee Craft - D-7-18

Suspension:

Matter of Melvin M. Marin - D-8-18




Decided and Entered: January 25, 2018

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Robert Gaynor Cain - D-5-18

Denied:

Matter of Kyle Douglas Hawkins - D-6-18
Matter of Edward VVan Cunningham - D-4-18
Matter of Daniel David Cotta - D-3-18

Decided and Entered: January 18, 2018

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) 81240.8
Disbarment:

Matter of Gaspar M. Castillo - D-1-18

Censured:

Matter of Matthew Joseph Mann - D-2-18




MEMBERS OF THE THIRD DEPARTMENT - ATTORNEY GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

THIRD DISTRICT

Joyce Q. Chupka
Yorden C. Huban, Esq.
Paul T. Kellar, Esq.

David W. Meyers, Esq.

William F. Ryan, Jr., Esq.

Dennis B. Schlenker, Esq.

Thomas D. Spain, Esq.

The Committee meets 11 times

per calendar year

2018-2019

FOURTH DISTRICT

Karla Williams Buettner, Esqg.
Lisa A. Burgess, Esq.

Cristine Cioffi, Esq.

Heidi Dennis, Esq.

Dianne N. Freestone, Esq.
Maryanne Malecki

Carrie McLoughlin Noll, Esg.

SIXTH DISTRICT

Mark S. Gorgos, Esq.
James M. Hartmann, Esq.
Diana L. Hughes, Esq.
Sheila C. Lindsey

R. James Miller, Esq.
Russell E. Ruthig, Esq.

James T. Stokes, Esq.
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